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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion

We have audited the financial statemeuts of Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited Company
Limited (the “Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a susunary of the
significant accounting policics and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its loss and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (the “SAs”) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the “ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requiréments and the ICAI Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
- Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of portfolio loans

Risk Management — Credit Risk™

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1.C.2 to the Financial Statements: Impairment and write off”, “Note 1.B.v
to the Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use of estimates and judgments”, Note 31 to the
Financial Statements: Impairment on financial instruments” and “Note 50 to the Financial Statements: Financial

Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of impairment on portfolio
loans involves significant management judgement.

As per Ind AS 109 Financial instruments, allowance for
loan losses is based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
estimation model. The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments  involves  significant  judgement and
estimates. The key arcas where we identified greater
levels of management judgement and therefore increased
levels of audit focus in the Company’s estimation of
ECLs are:

Data inputs - The application of ECL model requires
several data inputs. This increascs the risk of
completencss and accuracy of the data that has been
used to create assumptions in the model. In some cases,
data is unavailable and reasonable alternatives have been
applied to allow calculations to be performed.

= Model estimations — Inherently judgmental models
are used to estimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default (“PD™), Loss
Given Default (“LGD”), and Exposures at Default
(“EAD”). The PD and the LGD are the key drivers
of estimation complexity in the ECL and as a result
are considered the most significant judgmental
aspect of the Comipany’s modelling approach.

*  Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires the
Company to measure ECLs on an unbiased
forward- looking basis reflecting a range of future
economic conditions.  Significant management
judgement is applied in determining the cconomic
scenarios used and the probability weights applied
to them (including changes to methodology)
especially when considering the current uncertain
economic environment arising from COVID 19.

Our andit procedures included:
Design / controls

We performed end to end process walkthroughs to
identify the key systems, applications and controls used
in the ECL processes. We tested the relevant manual
(including  spreadsheet controls), general IT and
application controls over key systems used in the ECL
Process,
¢ Understanding management’s processes, controls
and systems implemented in relation to impairment
allowance;

e Testing the design and operating effectivencss of key
controls over the completeness and accuracy of the
key inputs, data and assumptions into the Ind AS 109
impairment models ;

s Testing the ‘Governance Framework’ controls over
validation, implementation and model monitoring in
line with the RBI guidance;

o Testing the design and operating effectivencss of the
key coafrols over the application of the staging
criteria;

e Testing key controls relating to selection and
implementation of material  macro-cconomic
variables and the controls over the scenarioselection
and application of probability weights;

» Testing management’s controls over authorisation
and calculation of post model adjustments and
management overlays;

Testing management’s controls on compliance with Ind
AS 109 disclosures related to ECL;
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

IHow the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of portfolio loans

*  Restructuring — the Company has had restructured
loans in the current year on account of COVID-19
related regulatory measures. This has resulted in
increased management estimation over
determination of losses for such restructured loans.

*  Qualitative adjustments — Adjustments to the model-
driven ECL results are recorded by management to
address known impairment model limitations or
emerging trends as well as risks not captured by
models. They represent approximately 3990 of the
ECL balances as at 31 March 2021. These
adjustments are inherently uncertain and significant
management judgement is involved in estimating
these amounts especially in relation to economic
uncertainty as a result of COVID-19.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that the impairment of loans
and advances to customers, including off balance sheet
elements, has a high degree of estimation uncertainty,
with a potential range of reasonable outcomes greater
than our materiality for the financial statements as a
whole, and possibly many times that amount. The credit
risk sections of the financial statements disclose the
sensitivities estimated by the Company.

Disclosures

The disclosures regarding the Company’s application of
Ind AS 109 are key to explaining the key judgements and
material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results. Further,
disclosures to be provided as per RBI circulars with
regards to non-performing assets and provisions will also
be an area of focus, particularly as this will be the first
year some of these disclosures will be presented and are
related to an area of significant estimate.

» Testing key controls operaling over the information
technology in relation to loan impairment
management systems, including system access and
system change management, program development
and computer operations and

* Test checked management review controls over
measurement  of  impairment allowances  and
disclosures in financial statements.

Inveolvement of specialists - we involved financial risk
modelling specialists for the following:

° valuating the appropriateness of the Company’s Ind
AS 109  impairment  methodologies  and
reasonableness of assumptions used (including
management overlay);

* For models which were changed or updated during
the year, evaluating whether the changes were
appraopriate by the updated model

methodology and

assessing

e The reasonablencss of the Company’s considerations
of the impact of the current economic environment
due to COVID-19 on the ECL determination.

Test of details

Key aspects of our testing included:

e Sample testing over key inputs, data and assumptions
impacting ECL  calculations to the
completeness, accuracy and relevance of data and
reasonablencss of economic forecasts, weights, and
model assumptions applied;

asscss

* Model calculations testing through re-performance,
where possible;

e Test of details of post model adjustments,
considering the size and complexity of management
overlays with a focus on COVID-19 related overlays,
in order to the rcasonableness of the
adjustments by challenging key assumptious,
inspecting the calculation methodology and tracing a
sample of the data used back to source data:

e Evaluated the appropriateness of management
rationale for determination of criteria for SICR
considering both: adverse effects of COVID 19 and
mitigants in the form of the RBI / Government
financial relief package;

dS5C88
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of portfolio loans

e Evalnated the appropriateness of management's
judgments was also independently reconsidered in
respect of calculation methodologies, segmentation,
gconomic factors, the period of historical loss rates
used and the valuation of recovery assets and
collateral and

e Assessing disclosures - We assessed whether the
disclosures appropriately disclose and address the
uncertainty which exists when deterimining the ECL.
As part of this, we asscssed the sensitivity analysis
that 1s disclosed. In addition, we assessed whether
the disclosure of the key judgements and
assumptions made was sufficiently clear

Information technology

IT systems and controls relating to Loan | Our audit procedures to asscss the IT system controls
Management System relating to Loan Management System included the
following:

e Evaluated the design of General IT controls ie.
access management, change management, program
development and computer operations and IT
application controls ie. controls on  system
generated reports and system / application
processing over key financial accounting and
reporting related to loans;

e Tested a sample of key internal financial controls

The Company’s processes on sanctions, disbursements
and recovery of portfolio loans are highly dependent on
the automated controls in information systems, such that
there exists a risk that gaps in the IT coatiol
environment could result in the financial accounting and
reporting records being materially misstated. The
Comipany uses Loan Management Systems to manage
its portfolio loans.

Due to the large lransaction volumes and the increasing operflting over the information technology in
challenge to protect the integrity of the Comipany’s relation to Loan Management System, including
systems and dala, controls over dala integrity- has granting access right, new user creation, removal of
become more significant. user rights and preventative controls designed to

enforce segregation of duties and system change

We have focused on program development, user access management;

management, change management, segregation of duties | ®  Engaged our IT and Data & Analytics specialists to

and system application controls over loan management evaluate the design, implementation and operating

systems. effectiveness of the significant accounts related
selected [T automated controls which are core to
automated computation cartied out by the IT system
and the consistency of data transmission and

e Other areas that were Iindependently assessed
included password policies, controls over changes to
applications and databases and that busincss users,
developers and production support did not have
access lo change applications, the operating system

or databases in the production environment.
i\ o

We have identified ‘IT system and controls’ as key andit
matters since the Company relies on automated processes
and controls for recording of portfolio loans,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

_ Other Information

The Company’s management and Beard of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s report and management
discussion & analysis section — “Analysis of the Financial Statements™ but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

. The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/foss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (the “Ind AS™) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes muintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularitics; sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporling process,

o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the s financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s and Board of Director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease Lo
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planncd scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
6 N
v



BSR & Co. LLP

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
24 May 2021

Page 7 of 13

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other legal and regulatory requirements

I.  As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A). As Required to report under section 143(3) of the Act we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aferesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act and

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

N3
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

1. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in ifs financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company and

iv. the disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 202 1.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and as per the special
resolution passed by the Company at its extra ordinary general meeting and as further explained in
Note 36 to the financial statements, the remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during
the current year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon byus.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Ak Visuomal
| Ajit Viswanath

Mumbai Partner

24 May 2021 Membership No. 067114
‘ UDIN: 210671 14AAAABI1009
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in our report of even date)

iii.

vi.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Conipany has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property,
plant and equipment by which all the property, plant and equipment are verified
annually. During the year, management has covered all property, plant and
equipment in its physical verification. According to the information and
explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verifications.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties recorded as property, plant and equipment in the books of
account of the Company are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of providing housing finance services and consequently,
does not hold any inventories. Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph
3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans/ guarantees or security provided in connection with any loan which have been given
to directors or to amy other person in whom the director is interested, therefore the
provisions of Section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. The Company is a
housing finance company and consequently is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules
framed there under. Thus, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 (1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Thus, paragraph 3
(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

N,
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report (Contined)

Vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in
respect of undisputed statutory dues including employee’s state insurance, income tax,
goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities except provident fund of
INR 29 lakhs which is deposited with appropriate authority with few delays. As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, wealth tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and value added tax. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s state
insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of provident
fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, ccss and other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of
disputes.

IX. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borowing to financial institution, bank or debenture holders.
During the year, the Company did not have any loans or borrowing from the government.

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of debt instruments and term loans werc
applied for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle / surplus funds which
were not required for immediate utilisation were invested in liquid assets.

Xi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officer or employecs, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the management

Xil. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as per the Act. Thus, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Xiv, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions entered into by the Company with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed. in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or allotted fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Thus, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
i,
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report (Continned)

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with Directors or
person connected with him. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company being a housing finance company is registered
with National Housing Bank and is not required to be registered under Section 45- IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

'AD’"C \/\wa

Ajit Viswanath
Mumbai Partner
24 May 2021 Membership No: 0671 14

UDIN: 210671 14AAAABI1009
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph (A.f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fullerton
India Home Finance Company Limited (the ‘Company’) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal coritrol stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the
Act™).

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal financial control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

Or eITOr.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and Directors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Aj | Vv ooadi

Ajit Viswanath

Mumbai Partner
24 May 2021 Membership No: 067114
UDIN: 210671 I4AAAABI1009



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021

As at As at
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (X lakhs)
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 6,770 11,890
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 59,566 250
Investments a4 30,750 38,512
Trade receivables s 68 25
Other financial assets 6 904 1,076
Loans and advances 7 368,674 389,843
466,732 441,596
Non financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 8 621 374
Deferred tax asset (net) 9 5,638 2,937
Other non financial assets 10 575 819
Property, plant and equipment 11 456 820
Right of use assets 12 1,646 2,020
Intangible assets 13 197 172
Intangible assets under development 13 0 28
9,133 7,170
Total Assets 475,865 448,766
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 14
i) total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 37 0
i) total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises 260 198
and small enterprises
Debt Securities 15 100,186 89,401
Subordinated liabilities 16 7,218 -
Borrowings 17 286,263 280,342
Other financial liabilities 18 14,607 6,706
408,571 376,647
Non financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 19 - 148
Provisions 20 285 175
Other non financial liabilities 21 1,475 707
1,760 1,030
Equity
Equity share capital 22 30,803 30,803
Other equity 23 34,731 40,286
65,534 71,089
Total liabilities and equity 475,865 448,766
Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes 1-55

which form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reglstrat\cn No.: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Lim§

[\J\K VS o X W

Ajit Viswanath Anindo Mukherjee
Partner Chairman
Membership No.: 067114 DIN : 00013375

c‘}\&"}

Pankaj Malik
Chief Financial Officer

'Seema Sarda
Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No. : A-15056

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2021




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Lass for the year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Revenue from operations
Interest income 24 51,823 50,323
Fees and commission income 25 52 839
Net gain on financial asset at FVTPL 26 42 1,460
Ancillary income 27 474 812
Total revenue from operations 52,391 53,434
Other income 28 196 711
Total Income 52,587 54,145
Expenses
Finance costs 29 31,080 30,657
Net loss on fair value changes 30 1 -
Impairment on financial instruments 31 18,048 8,508
Employee benefits expense 32 7,107 7,856
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,13&43 716 727
Other expenses 33 3,033 4,218
Total expenses 59,995 52,006
(Loss)/Profit before tax (7,408) 2,139
Tax expense 34
Current tax 843 2,186
Deferred tax expense / (credit) (2,700) (1,438)
(1,857) 748
Net (loss)/profit after tax (5,551) 1,391
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 34(b)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of gain/loss on defined benefit plans (5) (8)
Income tax relating to above 1 2
Other comprehensive lass (4) {6)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (5,555) 1,385
Earnings per equity share: 35
Basic earnings per share (in X) (1.80) 0.48
Diluted earnings per share (in X) (1.80) 0.48
Face value per share (in X) 10.00 10.00
Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which 1-55
form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022
Aj \ t \VABIVNTy YOS Vil
Ajit Viswanath Anin ukherjee Rakesh Makkar
Partner Chairman CEO & ime Director

Membership No.: 067114 DIN : 00019375 101225230

o“‘u& Vol
Pankaj Malik Seema Sarda
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
— ICSI Reg. No. : A-15056

Place: Mumbai {
Date: 24 May 2021 |




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021

A. Equity share capital

viiticulars Number of Amount
shares (% lakhs)
Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2019 245,356,916 24536
Changes during the year 62,676,277 6,267
Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2020 208,033,193 30,803
Changes during the year - -
|Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2021 308,033,193 30,803

B. Other equity (Amount in X lakhs)
Reserves and surplus Items of OCI
Reserve Fund Re-measurement
Particulars . Securities under Sectian . . of gain/loss on Total
General Reserve | Capital Reserve SN 29¢(7) of the Retained Earnings defined benefit
NHB Act, 1987 plans
Closing balance as at 31 March 2019 - 10 26,454 231 (1,516) (10) 25,169
Securities Premium on shares issued - - 13,732 - - - 13,732
Transferred from retained earnings to reserve fund - - - 278 (278) - &
Profit for the year - o 1,391 E 1,391
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year - - - - (6] (6)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 10 40,186 509 {403) {18) 40,286
Securities Premium on shares issued - - - - - -
Transferred from retained earnings to reserve fund - - - - - -
Loss for the year - - - (5,551) - (5,551)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - - - (4) (4)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 - 10 40,186 509 {5,954) (20} 34,731

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022
Lo ~ P
~
Ajit Viswanath

Partner
Membership No.: 067114

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Fullertan India Home Finance Company Li

Anindet Mukherjee

Chairman
DI 0019375
v
g
oV
Pankaj Malik

Chief Financial Officer

CEQ & Whole Time Dj
DIN : 0122523

Seema Sarda

Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No. : A-15056

or
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Note:

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(X lakhs) (X lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Praofit befare tax (7,408) 2,139
Adjustments for ;
{Includes amount spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility expense
as per Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Refer Note 45))
Financial asset measured at amortised cost (284) {597)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 122 218
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 716 727
Interest income on fixed deposits, bands and investments (3,388) {2,187)
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets at FVTPL (41) (1,460)
Impairment on financial instruments 18,048 8,508
Write off of fixed assets & intangible assets 2 -
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 23 (0)
Fair valuation of Stock appreciation rights (71) 88
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,719 7,436
Adjustments for working capital:
- (Increase)/decrease in loans and advances 3,397 (101,032)
- (Increase)/ decrease in other Assets (financial and non financial assets) (301) 97
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivahbles (43) 37
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (Provisian, financial and non financial liabilities) 11,232 (12,453)
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 22,004 (105,915)
Income tax paid (net) (1,238) (2,091)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities (A) 20,766 (108,006)
. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangibles (64) (288)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 33 -
Purchase of investments (126,420) (884,244)
Sale/maturity of investments 134,223 878,431
Fixed deposit placed during the year {334,140) (30,084)
Fixed deposit matured during the year 276,474 34,834
Interest received on fixed deposits and bonds 421 522
Interest received on investments 2,046 1,048
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities (B) (47,427) 219
. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of share capital {including share premium) - 20,000
Proceeds from barrowings from banks and financial institutions 188,541 146,100
Repayment of boerrowings from banks and financial institutions (165,921) (55,220)
Payment of ancillary barrowing costs (648) (200)
Principal payment of lease liability (433) (464)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 21,541 110,216
Net increase / {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents D={A+B+C) {5,120) 2,429
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period (E) 11,890 9,461
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents (D+E) 6,770 11,890
Compoenents of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 1 1]
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 2,668 10,083
- in fixed deposit with maturity less than 3 months 4,101 1,801
Cash and cash equivalents 6,770 11,890

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fullerton India Home Finance Company

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

l’\j\t ViSW o gdn”

Ajit Viswanath
Partner

Membership No.: 067114

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2021

Anindo Mukherjee
Chairman
DIN : 0DD15375

Pankaj Malik
Chief Financial Officer

Rgkesk Makkar

e

Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No. : A-15056



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

1 Notes to Financial Statement

{A} Company information
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited {‘the Comgany’) is a public imited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of Compantes Act, 1956. The Company is a Housing finance Company ('HFC') registered vide Registration number 07.0122.15
dated 14 July, 2015 with the National Housing Bank {'NHB'). The Registered address of the Company is Fullerton India Home Finance
Company Limited, 3rd Fioor, No 165, Megh Towers, Poonamallee High Read, Maduravoyal, Chennai. The Company provides loans to
customers for purchase of home, home improvement leans, home construction, home extensions, loans against property {coliectively
referred to as “Portfolio Loans™}.

As at 31 March 2023, Fullerton India Credit Company Limited, the helding Company owned 100% of the Company’s equity share capital.

(B}  Basis of preparation

(i} Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared, on a going concern basis, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as
per the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016,
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the NHB
Directions 2010 as applicable to an HFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

'The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 24 May 2021,

(i) Presentation of financial statements

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of changes in equity are presented in the format prescribed in the
Scheduie [l vide their Notification G.S.R. 1022(F) dated 11 October 2018 for Non —Banking Financial Companies in Division 1l to the Act. The
statement of cash flow has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note 51.

{liify Functional and presentation currency

Indiar rupees is the Company's functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Accordingly, the management has determined that financial statemants are presented in Indian Rupees. All amounts have been rounded off
to the nearest lakhs upto twe decimal places, unless otherwise indicated.

{iv) Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other comprehensive
income {FVOC!) instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy).

(W) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, assumptions and exercise
judgement in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent labilittes at
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the Management's best knowledge of
current events and actions. Actual resplts could differ from these estimates and differences between actual reswits and estimates are
recognized in the periods in which the resuits are known ar materialized.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 is inciuded in the following notes to the policy :

Note 1.C.2 — finangial instruments — Fair values, risk management and impairment of financials assets

Note 1.C.8 — recognition of deferred tax assets;

Note 1.C.9—estimates of ugefyl lives and the residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

MNote 1.C.10 — Impairment test of non-financial assets : key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of
expenditure on intangible assets;

Note 1.C.11 - measurement of defined benefit obligation : key actuarial assumptions and cash-settled — share-based payments

Note 1.£.12 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies : key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
outflow of resources, if any and

Note 52 — estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic







Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Sumrmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

(vi] Measurement of fair vatues
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly transaction between market
patticipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using an appropriate valuation
technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants wouid take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established controi framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, Measurement of fair value includes
determining appropriate valuation technigues.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that wouid ke received to se!l the asset
or paid to transfer the liakility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measuremeant date.

Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of judgment and estimation in the determination of
fair value.

Judgment and estimation are usually raquired for the sslection of the appropriate valuation methodology, determination of expected
future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued, determination of the probability of counterparty default and selection of
appropriate discount rates.

The management regularly reviews significant unohservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair vaiues are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues. When
measuring the fair value of an asset or 2 liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value of an asset or a liability fall intc different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
oceurred,

Furthar information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes to accounts:
Note 3B- Gratuity and Leave encashment

Mote 39 - Cash-settled - share-based payments

Mote 50 - Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

{C}  Significamt accounting policies
1 Revenue Recognition

Interest income
The Company calculates interest income by using the effective interest rate {E1R} method.
The effective interest rate method

Interest incame is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for ail financial instruments measured at ameortised cost, The EIR 1s
the rate that exactly discounts astimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset} is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition,
commission, fees and costs incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement.

The Company recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the hest estimate of & constant rate of return over the
expected life of the financiat asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractusl terms of the asset. If
expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustrrent ls booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.
The adjustment is subsequently amortized through Interest income inthe statement of profit and loss.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, the Company calculates interest income by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest income on financial assets classified as FYTPL is recognized at contractual interest rate of financiat instruments,

Penal/additional interest on default in payment of dues by customer is recognized on realization basis.

Fee income

Loan processing fee/document fees/stamp fees which are an integral part of financial assets are recognized through effective interest rate
over the term of the loan. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment, the unamortized portion of the fee is
recognized as income to the Statement of profit and loss at the time of such fereclosure/transfer through the assighment. Applications fee
is recognized ar the commencement of the contracts. Additional charges such as penal, dishonour, fareclosure charges, delayed payment
charges ete. are recognized on a realization basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized as and when the right to receive payment is established.

Net gain from financial instruments at FYTPL
The realised gain from financial instruments at FYTPL represents the differance between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at
the beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the
transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Rendering of services
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set cut in ind AS 115 to determine when to
recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue is measured based oh the consideration specified in the contract with a customer and excludes amourts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant
reversal of revenue is not expected to occur.

1fthe consideration promised in @ confract incizdes a variahle amount, an entity estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled in exchange for rendering the promised services to a customer. An amount of consideration tan vary because of discounts, rebates,
refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can also vary if an
entitlement to the consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

Comimission income
Commission income earmed for the services rendered is recognized on an accrual basis, while rate conversion charges are recognized
upfront based on event occurrence.

2 Financiat instruments

o Recegnition and initial measurement

Financial assets and liahilities are recognsied when the company becornes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value on a trade date basis. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabifities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair vaiue measured on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liability. Transaction
costs of financial instrument carried at fair vaize through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

. Classification and subsequent measurement
The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset
and the Company's business model for managing the asset.

Financial assets (other than equity)

The company subseguently classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- amortised cost;
- fair value through profit or loss
- falr value through other comprehensive income

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business
madel for managing financial assets.




Fullerton India Horne Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accaunting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest Rate {EIR) method if it meets both of the following conditions:
- The asset is held within a business model whose ohjactive is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sofely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity Instruments

On initial recegnition of an equity investment that is not keld for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in OC! {designated as FVOLC! - equity investment). This election is made an investment — by -
investment basis.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments excluding investment in the subsidary at fair value through profit or loss, unless
the Company ’s management has elected to classify irrevacably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI, when such
instruments meet the definition of Equity undar ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not heid for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by instrument basis.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financizl asset is held at a portfolio level because this
hest reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

~ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those poticies in practice;
- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that business model) and bow those
risks are managed
and
~ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periads, the reasons for such sales and expectation about future
sales activity.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial assets are part of an existing business
model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine
whether the business models have changed since the preceding period.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. That principal amount
may change over the life of the financial assets {e.g. if there are payments of principal) Amount ‘interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a Particulars period of time and for
other basic lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs}, as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are sclely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms
of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractuat term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Campany considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash fiows;

- Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- Prepayment and extension features; and

- Terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Contractual cash flows that are 5PPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement, Contractual terms that infroduce exposure to risks or
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or
commeodity prices, do not glve rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI,

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sole payments of princigal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium te its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued {but unpaid} contractual interest (which may aiso include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition,




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financiai assets at FYTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair valve. Net gains and lesses, including any interest or,
dividend income, are recognised in the statement of profit or inss.

Financial assets at amortised cost |These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment Josses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets {other than Equity|Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
Investments} at FVOCI financial assets and coilecting contractua! cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest,
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair valie movements
are recognized In the other comprehensive income {OCl). Interest income measured using the EfR
method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition, cumulative gain or toss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the eguity to
‘other income’ in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOC! These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the
Statament of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and {osses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Fihancial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement,

An equity instrument is amy contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of fts liabilities. Eguity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are subseguently measured at the amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless at initial recognition, they
are classified as fair value through prefit and loss. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the staterment of profit or loss.

. Reclassification
If the business maodel under which the Company helds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified. The
classification and measurement reguiremants related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period
foliowing the change in business model that resuits in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are
considered under the accounting poiicy on modification and derecognition of financial assets described below.

. De-recognition, modification and transfer
Financial Assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cask flows in a transaction in which substantiaily afl of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finandial
asset are transferred.

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of 2 financial asset are renegotiated or
otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introductien or adjustment of existing covenants of an
existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may
affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met {e.g a change te the increase in the interest rate that arises when
covenants are breached),

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it bas retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated Bability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement
that tekes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the fower of the criginal carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum 2mount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Profit/premium arising at the time of assignment of portfolio loans, is recognized as an upfront gain/loss. Interest an retained portion of the
assigned portfotio 1s recognized basis Effective interest Rate. The Service fee recelved is accounted for based on the terms of the underfying
deal structure of the transacticn.




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differance between:
1} the carrying amount {measured at the date of derecognition) and
11) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Cempany derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a finandial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. in this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised as profit or loss.

. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial [fzbilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the iiabilities
simultaneously.

. Impairment and write off

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of impairment ioss
on the financial assets at amortized cost along with related undrawn commitments and loans sanctioned hut not disbursed.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration ¢f the commitment, the Company Is required to provide a
joan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Commitment starts from the date of the sanction letter till the amount is fully drawn down
by the customer,

ECL is recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FYOC!, and certain loan commitments.
Equity instruments are not subjected to ECL.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, the credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment foss allowance
based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL is the expected cradit loss resulting from all possible dafault events aver the expected life of a financial
asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which rasults from default events that are possible within 12 menths after the
reporting date.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probabifity-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the
Company expects to receive) discounted at an approximation to the EIR,

The Company has estaklished a policy to perferm an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of 2 default occurring over the remaining
life of the finandal instrument.

The Company measures ECL on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. It incorporates all
infermation that is refevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future evants and
economic conditions at the reporting date.

A more detailed description of the methodalogy used for ECL s covered in the ‘credit risk’ section of note no. 50.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the halance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. ECL impairment
loss allowance {or reversal} recognized during the period is accounted as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss,

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the company determines that the counter party doas not have assets or sources of income that
could generate cash flows 1o repay the amounts. However, financial agsets that are written off could stili be subject to enforcement
activities in grder 1o comply with the company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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. Collateral valuation and repossession

To mitigate the eredit risk on financial assets, the company seeks to use collateral, where possible as per the board approved credit policy.
The Company provides fully secured to customers. The parameters relating to acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral is a part
of the credit policy of the company.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physicaily repossess properties in its retail portfolic. For other collaterals, the
Company liquidates the assets and recovers the amount due against the loan. Any surpius funds are returned to the customers/obligors.

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of the cash on hand, call deposits and other short term,
highly liquid secusities with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in vatue. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawa! and usage.

4 Leases

The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

A finance lease is a lease which confers substantially all the risks and rewards of the leased assets on the lessee. An operating lease is a fease
where substantially all of the risks and rewards of the leased asset remain with the lessor.

As a lessee
The Company has various offices, branches and other premises under non-cancellable varicus lease arrangements to meet its operational
business requirements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date and is
discounted using the Company’s incremental horrowing rate. Lease payments as at commencement date are adjusted for any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is lacated, less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at their carrying amount at the commencement date and are discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-cf-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

Leases may include options to extend or terminate the lease which is included in the right-of-tise Assets and Lease Liability when they are
reasonably certain of exercise, '

The lease liahility is remeasured when there is a change in one of the following:

- fisture lease payments arising from a change the in inflation rate,

- the Company’s estimate of the amount exgected te be payakle under a residual value guarantee, or

- the Company's assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in the statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assei has been reduced to nit.

The company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the face of the Balance sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of [ow-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shori-term

leases of real estate properties that have a fease term of 12 months. The company recognises the tease payments asscciated with these
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor:

When the laase is deemed a finance lease, the leased asset is not held on the balance sheet; instead a finance lease receivable is recognized
representing the lease payments receivable under the terms of the lease, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the {ease.

When the lease is deemed an operating lease, the lease income is recognised on 3 stralght-Iine hasis over the period of the lease unless
another systematic basis Is more appropriate. The company holds the leased assets on-balance sheet within property, plant and equipment,
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5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost is calculated using the Effactive Interest Rate {EIR) on the amortised cost of the instrument. EiR includes interest and
amortization of ancillary cost incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

6 Foreign currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which Is atso the Company's functional currency. Transactions in
foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
quglifies for recognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabitities are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settiement and restatement are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nen-maonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, translation differences an nen-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments
held at fair valug through profit or joss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as eguity investments classified as FYOC are recognised in other comprehensive income.

7 Trade and other payables

These amounis represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company before the end of the financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as financial liabilities. They are recognised initially at their fair value, net of transaction costs, and
subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method where the time value of money is significant.

8 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses, net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,
except when they relate to business combinations or to an item that is recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in Equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly In Equity respectively.

Current Income taxes

The current income tax includes income taxes pavable by the Company computed in accordance with the tax laws applicable In the
jurisdiction in which the Company generate taxable income and does not incluge any adjustment ta the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years.

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if
any, related to income taxes, It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is 2 legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred income taxes .
Deferred income tax is recognised using Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the deductible
and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of an assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabHities in 2 transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- taxable tempaorary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which the temporary differences are expected to be reversed or settled. Deferred tax asset are recognised to the extent that taxabie profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
he utilised. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseauences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, te recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probible
sufficient taxabie profit will be available to allow part of deferred income tax assets to be utilised. At each reporting date, the company re-
assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unvecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonahly
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be availabte zgainst which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax assets and liabilities and the

deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. et
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Gaads and services tax input credit
Goods and services tax input credit is recognised in the books of account in the period in which the supply of goods or service received is
recognised and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/fvalue-added taxes paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or receipt of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
naid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax reccverable frem, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

9 Property plant and equipment {inchsding Capital Work-in-Prograss} and Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Cest of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase pricef{after deducting trade discounts and rebates) including
import duties and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumutated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the Company. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Depreciation/Amortisation
Depraciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis as per the estimated useful life of the assets as
determined by the rnanagement, which is in line with Schedule | of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 except for certain assets as stated below.

Useful life estimated by the Useful life as per Schedule 1
Company {in years)
{in years)
Computer Server and Other Accessories * 4 &
Computer Desktop and Laptops * 3 3
Furniture and Fixtures * 5 10
Office Eguipment's * 5 5
Handheld devices * 2 5
Vehicles * 4 a

*Useful life of the assets has been assessed based on internal assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage
of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc.

Depreciation/Amortization method, useful life and residual value are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if required.
Depreciation/Amortization on addition/disposabie is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from/upto the date on which asset s ready to use
Jdisposed off except assets valued less than INR 5000. Changes in the expecied useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation
periog or methodology, as approgriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. All assets costing utpo INR 5000 are depreciated
fully in the year of capitaiization.

ieasehold impravements are amortized gver the period of the lease subject to a maximurn lease period of 66 months.

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line methaod over a peried of five years commencing from the date on which such asset is
first installed.
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Derecognition

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the
resultant gains or {osses are recoghized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

Impairment on Non Financials Assets

The carrying amount of the non-financial assets other than deferred tax are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indicaticn of
impairment based on internal fexternal factars. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is
considered as a cash generating unit.

The Company reviews at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. A previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in ¢ircumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is
not increased beyond the carrying value that wouid have prevailed by charging usual depreciation / amortisation if there were no
impairment.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. The
recoverable amount of the assets/ Cash generating unit is estimated as the higher of net selling price and its value in use. Asset/cash
generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount is written down to the recoverable amount by recognrising ihe
impairment loss as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the revised
cerrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful tife.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months afier the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes includes employees’ state insurance, superannuation scherme, employee pension scheme, A
defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into an account with a
separate entity and has no fegal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified periodic contributions to
the credit of the employees’ acceunt with the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees..

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is & post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect
of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any ptan assets.

The caiculation of the defined tenefit obligation is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method,
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic henefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measuremenis of the net defined benefit {izbility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company
determines the net interest expense fincome on the net defined benefit liability/asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual periad to the then net defined benefit liability/asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability fasset during the pericd as 2 result of contributions and Lenefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined banefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service
cost’ or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailmant Is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss, The Company
recognises gains and lagses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settiement occurs.
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QOther long term employee benefits

The Company’s net obfigation in respect of long-term employee benefits gther than post-employment benefits, which do not fall due wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services, is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured an the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, Remeasurements gains or losses are recoghised as profit or loss in the period In which they arise.

Share Based Payment { Stock Appreciation Rights)

For cash-settled share based payments, the falr value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as ‘employee beneflt expenses'
with a corresponding increase in liabllitTes, over the vesting period on straight line bas’s, The liability is re-measured at 2ach reporting
period up to, and including the settiement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expenses. Refer Note 39 for
details.

12 Provisions [other than for employee benefits), contingent liahilities, contingent assets and commitments

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be required to sett/e the obligation, in respect of which a reliabie estimate can
be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined hased on best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the cccurrence or non-
cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
pecause it s not probable that an cutfiow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic
henefits is highly probable,

The Company operates in a regulfatory and legal environment that, by nature, has inherent litigation risk to %3 operations and in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business, Glven the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of fosses, the
Company takes into account 8 number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents,

Commitments include the amount of purchase order {net of advances} issued to the counterparties for supplying/development of asset and
amount of undisbursed portfelio ioans.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.
13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income) attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing profit after tax {excluding other comprehensive income) attributable to the equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or incoma relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by
the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving hasic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which coutd have been issuad on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the prefit per share.

14 Operating Segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM). The CODM’s function is to altocate the resources of the Company and assess the performance of the cperating segments of the
Campany.

15 Dividend on equity shares

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is
no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the
shareholders except In case of interim dividend. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in eguity.

16  Trade receivables

These amounts represent receivable for goods and services provided by the company. Trade receivables are presented as financia? asset.
They are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. An allowance far impairment of trade
receivable is established if the collection of the receivable becomes doubtful. -
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D)

Recent accounting developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA") notifies new standarg or amendments to the existing standards. In line with the amendments made to
iIFRS, on luly 24, 2020, the MCA has issued amendments ta certain Ind AS as summarized below :

Standard / amendmaents

Summary of amendments

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of
Financial Statements and Ind AS 8
- Accounting policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

s Refined definition of terms ‘material’ and related clarifications
» Consetjuential amendments to other standards basis refined definition of matertal

Ind AS 103 - Business
Combinations

* Revised definition of a business

« Introduction of an optional congentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business

« Additiona! guidance how to assess whether an acquired process is substantive, If the acquired set of
activities and assets does not have outputs and if it does have outputs

Ind AS 107 — Financial
Instruments : Disclosures

Additional disclosures pertaining to interest rate benchmark reforms

Ind AS 109 — Fingnrial
Instruments

Modification to some specific hedge accounting requivermants to provide relief to the potential effacts of
uncertainty caused by the interest rate benchmark (IBOR) referm

Ind AS 116 — Leases

Practical expedient which permits leases not te account for COVID 18 related rent concessions as a lease

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs {“"MCA")
thraugh a notification, amended
Schedule lil of the Companies Act,
2013. The amendments revise
Division |, {l and Ill of Schedule I
and are applicable from April 1,
2021, Key amendments relating to
Division 11 which relate to
companies whose financial
statements are required to
comply with Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
are:

Balance Sheet:

» Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished
as current or non-current,

« Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to pricr period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.
+ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

+ Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under develogment.

= If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

« Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immaovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personne! (KMP) and related parties, details of bernami property held etc,

Statement of profit and loss:

= Additional disciosures relating to Corporate Sortial Responsibility {CSR), undisclosed income and crypto
or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the
standalone financial statements.

The amengments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to thems as
required by law
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Cash and cash egulvalents

As at As at
Pariculars 31 March 2621 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs} [% lakhs)
Cash on hand 1 o
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 2,668 10,089
- in fixed deposit with original maturlty less than 3 menths 4,101 1,801
Total 6,770 11,880
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at Asat
Parliculars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% |akhs} (X lakhs)
In Depos|ts accounts - with original maturity of more than 3 menths* 59,566 250
Total 59,566 250
*Includes deposlt with bank kept as lien or guarantee a5 detailed helow:
1) Depasits amounting to ¥ 25 [akhs (31 March 2020: % Nil lakhs) pertain to collateral deposits towards recovery expense fund {REF) with NSE in the interest of investors.
Investments
As at, As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) 1% Jakis)
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Qucted: Government securities and ¥-bills -
10,000,000 {31 March 2020: Nil] units 0% {NR GOI T8 2021/182 9,862 -
5000,000 (21 March 2020: Nil } units 0% INR GOI TB 2021/182 4,948 -
Unguoted: Certificate of deposits
Nit{21 March 2020: 10,000) units of Rs. 100,000 each of Axis Bank Limited - 9,708
7,500 (31 March 2020: 10,000) units of Rs. 100,000 each of SIDBI 7,186 9,526
4,500 (31 March 2020: 10,000) units of Rs. 100,000 each of NABARD 1,462 9,622
Nil {31 March 2020. 5,000) units of Rs. 100,000 each of ICICI Bank Limited - 4,812
7,500 (31 March 2020: 5,000) units of Rs. 100,000 each of INDUSIND Bank 7,284 4,244
Total 30,750 38,582
fnvastments within India 30,750 38,512
tnvestments Outside india - -
Trade receivables
As at As at
Particutars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{2 lakhs) [% lakhs)
Receivables considered gaood - Unsecured &8 25
Less! Provision for impairment - -
Totat &8 25

Mo trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jaintly with any other persen. Also, no trade or other recevables are due fram firms or private

companies respectively in which any director is & partner, a director or a member.

Other financial assets

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X dakhs) 1% lakhs]
Security Depaosits 100 120
Interest Accrued on Investment 104 831
Recelvabie fram Government of India for exgratia claim 475 -
Others 225 125
Total 904 1,076




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other expfanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

7 Loans and advances

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2621 | 31 March 2020
[Xlakhs) {% lakhs}
Loans carried amortised cost
{1) Loans repayable on Demand - -
{ii} Partfolio Loan* 389,533 400,098
Gross loans ang advances 389,533 400,098
Less- impairment allowance {20,858) (10,355)
Net loans and advances 368,674 389,843
{1} Secured by tangible assets 387,341 400,098
{li)Secured by intangible zssets - -
{iii) Covered by Bank/Government Guzrantees 2,152 -
{iv) Unsecured ) - -
Gross loans and advahces 389,533 400,058
Less! limpaitinent |oss allowanhce (20,858} {10,255)
Net loans and advances 368,674 389,843
* Allthe loans are disbursed in India and there are no foans issued ta public sector.
& Current tax assets
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{X takhs) (% lakbs)
Advance tax {net of provisian] 621 374
Total 521 3714
9  Deferred tax assets {net}
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{X Iakhs) (% lakhs
Deferred tax asset arising on account of
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 109 50
Timing difference betwaen book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961 1 24
Provision for expected credit loss on fingncial assets 5,206 2472
Processing fees and LOC adjustment related to financial assets at amortized cost 420 523
Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1861 151 126
Re-measurement of gain/loss on dafined benefit plans - 2
On account of lease liabilities 461 546
WITivi on Investments 0 -
Total deferred tox assets (A 6,418 3,743
Dieferrad tax fiability arising on account of :
MTM on Investments - 23
On account of right to use asset 419 513
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial liabilities at amortized cost 233 136
Speclal Reserve created as per section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 and claimed as deduction ufs 36 |1) {viil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 128 128
Total deferrad tax liabilities {8) 780 806
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B) 5,638 2,937
10 Other ngn-financial assets
Asat Asat
Particulars 34 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X lakhs) (% takhs)
Advances recaverable in cash of in kind or for value to be received 143 42
Prepaymants 268 300
Capital advances - 3
Advances to emplovees o 1
Others 164 473
Total 575 819




Fudferton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summiary of significant accaunting pallcies and other explanatery information ta the firancial statements as at and for the year ended

31 March 2021

i1 Property, plant and equipment {Ampunt in X lakhs}

Iparticatars t?fﬂce FurAniture & Computers & Leasehold Vehides Land & Leased assets Total
Equipments Fixtures Accessories Improvements Building*

Gross block
Balance as at 32 March 2039 126 442 348 283 53 [ - 1,268
Additions 15 45 12 58 ] - - 136
Defetians {a} - - {31) - - - (31]
Balance as at 31 March 2620 141 487 360 320 59 & - 1,373
Additions 2 2 - 2 & - - 12
Deletions {10} {49) {9) {18} (45) - - {131)
Balange as at 31 March 2021 133 440 351 304 Pl [} 1,254
Accumulated depreciation
Balanee as at 31 March 2019 17 3 112 50 16 - - 258
Depraciation charge 28 93 01 &1 14 - - 299
Deletions - - - 4 - - {4
Balance as at 31 March 2020 45 158 213 107 30 - - 553
Depreciation charge 35 121 87 60 14 - - 317
Deletions 4] (21} (5] {8) (36) - - {72)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 76 258 295 161 8 - - 798
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1 96 ‘ 329 i 147 i 13 | 2 | 6 ! - | 820
|Balance as at 31 March 2021 57 182 56 143 12 ] - 456
Capital Work in Propress.
Balance as at 31 Mavch 2020 - | - ’ - | - | - ' - | - r -
Bzfance as at 31 March 2021 - - - - - - - -

*pledged as security against secured non convertible debanture

As per management assessment there are no prebable scenario in which the recoverable amount of asset would decrease below the eartying amount of assef, Consequently no itpalrment reguired.

12 Right of use assets

As at As at
Particuiars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% takhs) (% laichs)
Right of use assets 1,646 2,020
Total 1,546 2,020
13 Intangibles assets {Amount in % lakhs)
Particulats Camputer Total
Software
Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2019 101 10%
Additions 124 124
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 235 225
Additisns 79 79
Deletions - -
Bal as at 31 March 2021 304 364
Amartisation
Balance as at 31 March 2013 17 17
Amortisation 36 36
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 53 53
Amortisation 54 54
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 in? 107
Net hlock
Balance as at 3t March 2020 | 172 | 172
Balance as at 31 March 2021 : 197 197
Intangibiles under developrnent
Balance as ot 3% March 2020 | 28 | 28
Balance as at 31 March 2021 ] k]
14 Trade payables
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X lakhs) (% lakhs)
Dues ta micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 44 far dues ta Micro, Small and Medium enterprise) 37 o
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprisesand small_enterprises 260 198
Total 297 198
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Summary of sl

ignificant actounting policies and other explanatory Information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended

31 March 2021

15 Debt Sacurities

16 Subordinated liabllitles
' As at Ag at
Particulars 31 March 2321 | 31 March 2024
(X lakhs) (% lakhs)
At amortised cast
Nen convertible debentures [unsecured) 7,218 -
Total 7,218 -
Borrowings within India 7,218 -
Borrowings Outside india . - d
17 Borrowings
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (%X lakhs)
At amaortised cost
Term loans from bank (secured)* 279,062 280,342
Cash Credit (Secured) “ )
Other Loans
Cammercial papers (Unsecured) # 7,160 -
Total 286,263 280,342
Borrowings within India 286,263 280,342
Borrowings Outside India - -

(@

As at Asat

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

[X lakhs) {% lakhs}
Atamortised cost
Noh convertible debentures {securedj* 100,186 89,401
Total 100,186 89,401
Barrowings within India 100,186 89,401
Borrowings Cutslde India - -

*All secured NCDs fssued by the Company are secured by first pari-passu charge on the Company’s immovable prapetty at Chennai and by hypothecation of book debts / loan receivables and by flzed
depesit with the banks ta the extent of shortfall in asset cover as mentioned in respective information memorandum.

The funds raised by the Company during the year by issue of Secured Nen Convertible Debentures were utilised for the purpose intended, i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance the existing
indebtedness of the Company or for long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable [aws,

Nature of securities and terms of repayment for borrowings

*Indfan rupee loan from banks are secured by first pari passu charge aver all loan receivables. Term loan from bank include borrowing from National Housing Bank amounting to 5,002 lakhs (31
March 2020: X Nil lakhs) that are secured by way of specific charge on loan receivables,

# Commercial paper carrles Interest in the range of 5 to 6% p.a. and tenure of 30 tc 365 days fully payable at maturity. Tha interest rata is an XIRR basis.

{b) Net debt reconciliation

As at As at
Particutars 31 Marck 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Rarrowings 286,263 280,342
Debt securities {including Subardinated liabilities) 107,403 25,401
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {6,770} {11,890] |
Net Debt 386,896 357,853

{Amaunt in % lakhs)

. . Debt securltias {including
Partieulars Barrowings Subordinated Liabifities)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 201,111 74,988
Cash flows {net) 78,780 12,100
Others* 451 2,513
Balance as at 31 March 2020 280,342 89,401
Cash flows [nat) 6,120 16,500
Others* (199} 1,503
Balance as at 32 March 2021 286,263 107,404

*Qthers inclucles the effact of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees ate,

Covenant Breach

“The economic fallout of the Covid-13 pandemic led ta significant financiat stress for customers of the Company. Consequently, additional provisions towards expacted credit losses ware made during
the year in accordance to Ind AS 109. These resuited in breach of some of the borrowing related covenants especlally GNPA to Total Assets ratlo, Net worth maintenance ete, The Company has been
regular in servieing of its borrowings and has represented to the lenders seeking for waiver with respact to nen-compliance of these covenants. The ronsequence of breach if not waived could result
in repricing of facility or a recall of the faclities if the lender so chooses.

As at 31 March 2021, there has baan a breach of covenant in facilities arﬁnunh‘ng o INR 8,750 lakhs with repricing as a consaquence. The Company is in advanca discussioh with lenders to raceive
forma! waiver by Q1 FY 2022 which has been disclosed undar maturity analysis and liguidity risk disclosures as per ariginal terms. None of the lenders have chosen to recall any facility as st reporting
date giveh Company's track record and relationship. Further, the Company has sufficiant liquidity to tide over 2ny potential recali due to covenant breaches in the foreseeable future.”




Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

Detalls of terms of contractual arincipal redemption/repayment in respect of debt securities and borrowing

{A) Debt securities and Subordinated Debt as on 31 March 202%

- ithil M tl 3
Qriginal maturity of lpan . Due within & Giue 1 to 2 Years | Due 2 te 3 Years are thar Total
Rate of interest year Years
(in no. of days}
% lakhs % lakhs % Jakhs % lakhs % lakhs
issued at par and redesmable at par
731-1085 07%-08% - 10,000 40,060 - 50,600
More than 1460 08% -09% - 4,000 6,800 18,100 29,900
09% - 11% - - - 2,500 2,500
Issued at par and redeemable at premlium
1096-1460 08% -09% 16,000 - - - 10,00C
09% - 11% 7,500 - - - 7,500
Tatal 17,50¢ 14,000 46,800 21,600 95,900
Deht securities as an 31 March 2020
. - 1 M h
QOriginat maturity of loan Due within Duel to 2 Years [ Due 210 3 Years ore than 3 Tatal
n Rate of interest year Years
{(in no. of days}
X lakhs X lakths % lakhs T lakhs T Jakhs
Issued at par and redeemable at par
731-1095 09% - 11% 17,500 - - - 17,500
07% - 08% 13,000 - - - 13,000
1096-1460 08% - 08% - 5,000 - - 5,000
09% - 11% - - - - -
More than 1460 08% - 05% - - 4,000 18,900 22,800
09% - 11%, - - - 2,500 2,500
issued at par and red ble at prermium -
731-1085 03% - 09% 5,000 - - - 5,000
1085-1460 03% - 09% - 10,000 - - 10,000
08% - 11% - 7,500 - - 7,500
Totzl 35,500 22,500 4,000 21,400 83,400 |
(B] Borrowlings as an 31 March 2021
Original maturity | Rate of Interest Due within 1 year Bue 1to 2 Years Due 2to 3 Years Nore than 3 Years Total
of loan No. of No. of No. of No. of 1
x|
{in no. of days) instzllments 3 lzkhs instaliments % lakhs installments akhs installments % lakhs R lakhs
Monthly repayment schedule
More than 1460 | 07%-08% | 36 | 3,214 | 36 | 3.214 | 36 | 3214 | 88 | 5,554 | 16,196
Quarterly repayment schedule -
366-730 07% - GB% 2 1,250 - - - - - - 1,250
731.1085 07% - 08% 2 1,250 - - - - - - 1,250
08% - 09% - - - - - - - - -
1096-1460 7% - 0B% - - 4 2,500 4 2,500 2 1,250 £,250
More than 1460 07% - 08% 20 7,333 44 22,194 42 12,694 15 8,958 58,181
08% -39% 8 3,714 12 7,048 7 4,976 5 4,167 19,905
Haif yearly repayment schedule
1096-1460 07% - 08% - - 1 1,080 3 2,000 2 2,000 5,060
07% - 08% 45 30,347 57 39,125 50 38,625 35 28917 138,014
More than 1460 089% - 09% [ 7,361 [ 7,361 5 6,111 3 4,308 25,138
06% - 07% 4 1,250 4 1,250 2 625 - - 3,125
Bullet repayiment schedule
Less than 365 07%-08% | 2] 5,041 | | | [ ] | | 5,041
Total [ [ 120 | 50,761 | 164 | 23,692 | 148 | 78,746 | 150 | 56,151 | 279,350
Borrowings as ort 31 March 2020
Original maturity | Rate of interest Due within 1 year Due 1to 2 Years Bue 2to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total
ofloan Yo of No.of No. of Wo. of
int no. of days| - : - o - 0 kh %lakh
f aye) installments 3 Jakhs installments X fakchs installments ¥ lakhs install %lakhs lakhs
Quarterly repayment schedule
More than 1460 08% - 09% | Fl| 7,857 | 5[ 7,857 | 5 | 7,857 | a] 3,929 27,500
| 09% - 11% | 40 | 16,807 | 40 ] 16,302 | 40 | 16,801 | 22| 20,325 70,929
Half yearly repayment schedule
366-730 08% - 11% - - - - - - - - -
731-1095 08% ~09% 1 1,250 2 2,500 2 2,500 1 1,250 7,500
1096-1450 08% - 09% 1 833 2 1,667 2 1,667 1 833 5,000
09% -11% 4 1,667 - - - - - - 1,667
07% - Q8% 4 1,250 4 1,250 4 1,250 2 825 4,375
More than 1460 08% - 09% 27 14,640 43 28,805 45 30,680 54 40,958 115,082
09% - 11% i6 7,319 16 2,321 11 5,694 15 5208 25,544
Yaarly repaymant schadule
731-1085 06% - 07% 1 5,000 - - - - - - 5,000
08% - 09% i 1,667 i 1,667 1 1,666 - - 5,000
More than 1460 08% - 09% i 6,667 1 6,666 - - - - 13,333
Taotal 194 64,952 117 74,535 113 68,115 119 73,128 280,730

N
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended

31 March 2021

Particulars of Secured Redeemable Mon-convertible Debentures:

As at As at
Particulars Face Value Quantity Date of Redemption 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (R lakhs) (2 lakhs)
8.25% Series-1 10 500 May 27, 2020 - 5,000
7.95% Series-3 10 1,800 August 28, 2020 - 10,000
7.85% Serias-4 10 300 Novernbar 27, 2020 - 3,000
9.67% Series-11 10 500 March 22, 2021 - 5,000
9.68% Series-10 10 1,250 March 24, 2021 - 12,500
8.05% Series-5 10 500 April 20, 2021 - 5,000
8.48% Series-7 10 1,000 April 20, 2021 10,000 10,000
9.2% Series-8 10 750 July 28, 2021 7,500 7,500
B.05% Series-2 10 400 March 24, 2023 4,000 4,000
8.75% Series-6 10 680 May 28, 2023 6,800 6,800
B.65% Serfes-12 10 1,210 February 9, 2025 12,100 32,700
7.95% Series-12 10 1,750 May 18, 2023 17,500 -
7.2% Series-14 10 1,000 June 26, 2023 10,000 -
6.00 % Sarles-15 10 4,000 October 14, 2022 10,000 -
FRB {Linked to 3 Months T-Bills plus spread of 2,25%) Series-16 10 1,250 September 26, 2023 12,500 -
9.25% Series-9 10 250 August B, 2025 2,500 2,500
[rotal 92,900 83,400
Particulars of Unsecured Non-canvertible Debenturas:
Asat As at
Particutars rocs Value Guantity Date of Redemption 21 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(R lakhs) 2 lakhs} i takhs)
8.5% Sub-debt-1 10 300 June 8, 2030 3,000 -
8.5% Sub-debt-2 10 400 JanUary 1, 2031 4,000 -
Total 7,000 -
18 Other financial liabilitias
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lzkhs} {% lakhs]
Ermployee benefits and other payables 513 1,258
Book overdraft 7,325 434
Payable towards asset assighment / securitization 1,227 627
Lease liabilities 1,831 2,171
Others 3,311 2,218
Total 14,607 6,706
19 Current tax Habilities (net)
Asat As at
Particulars 33 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
1% lakhs} {2 lakhs]
Provision for incame tax (net of advance tax) - 148
[Total - 148
: 20 Provisions
: As at As at
! Partictlars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (X Jakns)
. Provision for employee benefits
' Provision for compensated absences 80 13
: Pravision for definad benefit plans 205 162
Tatal 285 175
21 Other non-financial liabilities
As at As at
Particuiars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{€ Jakhs) {% lakhs)
Statutory dues 142 171
Others 1,333 536
Total 1,475 707
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explaratory informatian te the financial statements as at and for the year ended
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22 Equity share capital

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 3z March 2020
(% lakhs) (Xlakhs} |
Authorised Eguity shares Capltal 150,000 150,000
1,500,000,00C (31 March 2020: 1,500,000,000) aquity shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 30,302 30,303
308,033,193 {31 March 2020: 308,033,193} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
{a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Particulars Number of Amaount Number of Amount

i shares {Xiakhs) shares {X lakhs}
Balanca 2t the beginning of the year 208,023,192 30,803 245,356,916 24,536
Add:Shares issued during the year - 62,676,277 6,267
Balance at the end of the year 308,033,193 30,803 308,033,193 30,803

{b] Terms/right attached 1o equity shares;

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of aquity shares is entitied te one vote per share,
Any Dividend proposed by the Board of Birectors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders In the ensulng Anhual General Meeting. Dividend is declared and paid in Indiar rupses.

!n the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled ta receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferentizl amounts. The distribution
will be [ propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Shares held by halding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subs|diariss/associates are as below:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Pariiculars Number of Amaount Number of Amount
shares {3 lakhs) sharas (% lakhs)
Fullerton india Cradit Company Limitad, the helding company and jis nominges 308,033,193 30,803 308,033,183 30,803
308,033,193 {31 March 2020: 308,033,193) equity shares of Rs. 10 ezch fully paid)
{d) Sharehelders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Number of % Number of %
shares of holding shares af holding
Fullerton india Credit Company Limited, the holding company and its nomineas 208,033,153 100.0% 308,033,193 100.0%

(e} The Company has not Issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash ner has there been any buyback of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2021,

23 Other equity

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
X talchs) [ laichs)
Capltal Reserve 10 10
Securitizs premium 40,186 40,136
Reserve Fund under Section 29C(F) of the NHB Act, 1987 509 509
Items of other camprehensive income {20} {16)
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss {5,954] {4p3)
Total 34,731 40,286

{Refer Staterment of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2021 for movement in Other Eguity)

fature and purpose of reserves

{i) Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve is created on account of reversa! of debenture issue costs charged to securitias premium under previaus GAAP. The same shall be utilised as per the provisions of Companies Act,
2013

(1)) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013,

{iif] Reserve Fund under Sectien 29C(I) of the NHB Act, 1987
The Company is required to create 2 fund by transferring not less than 203% its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and foss account and before any dividend is declared. The
fund shall be utilised for the purpose as may be specified by the Naticnal Housing Bank from tima to time and evary such appropriation shall be reported to the National Housing Bank within 21 days
from the date of such withdrawal. :

{iv} Retained Earning & Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Retained eaming are profit that the company has earned te date, less any dividend or other distributions paid ta the shareholders, net of utillasation as permitted under applicable faw.

e
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Summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatary information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest Income

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 33 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
On Portfolio Loans 48,435 48,136
On Depasits withs banks 2,070 517
On Investments 1,318 1,670
Total 51,823 50,323
Fees and commission income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Fees and commission income 52 838
Total 52 839
Net gain on financial asset at FVTPL
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
[ fakhs) (T lakhs})
Realised Gain 12 1,346
Unrealised Gain - 114
Total 42 1,460
Ancillary income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (X lakhs)
Other fee incotne 474 812
Total 474 812
Other income
Year ended Year ended
Farticulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (% lakhs}
Profit on derecognition of property plant and equiptment (net) - 0
Interest on Security Deposits 8 9
Miscellaneous income 188 702
Total 196 711
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{Z lakhs} [ lakhs)
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 21,450 23,413
Debt securities 9,041 6,603
Interest expense on lease rental liabilities 119 210
Bank charges and others 480 431
Total 31,090 30,657
Net loss on financial assets at FYTPL
Year ended Year ended
. 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Particulars
(% lakhs) (X lakhs})
Unrealised Loss 1 -
Total 1 -
tmpairment on financial instruments
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 202% | 31 March 2020
(X lakhs) [ lakhs)
Bad debts and Write off {net of recovery) 7,444 2,831
Expected credit loss on portfolio loans 10,604 5,677
Total 18,048 8,508

Y



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
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32 Employee berefits expense

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{¥ lakhs) {X lakhs)
Salaries, bonus and aliowances 6,505 7,174
Share based payment to employee's and director's [71) 38
Contribution to provident and cther funds 313 333
Gratuity expense {refer note 38} 41 10
Staff welfare and training expenses 318 291
Total 7,107 7,396
33 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X takhs) (% takhs)
Printing and stationery 34 85
Rent a9 44
Rates and taxes 2 4
insurance - 0
Legal charges 479 179
Professional charges 990 1,948
Callection expenses 6 82
Coutier charges 13 42
Repairs and maintenance
Cffice premises g1 78
Gthers a 0
Directors' sitting fees 4 19
Traveliing expenses 123 268
Telecommunication expenses S50 121
Payment to auditor {refer details below) 26 29
Elactricity charges 76 71
Security charges 51 77
Recruitment expenses 15 42
Fees and subscription [ 13
Corporate social responsibility expenses as per section 135 {5} of Companies Act, 2013 (see note 45) 14 -
Miscellaneous expenses* 828 1,115
Write off of Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 25 -
Total 3,033 4,218
Professional fees payable to auditors
Statutary Audit fee 14 14
Tax Audit fee 3 3
Other services 3 z
in other capacity
- Certification matter 8 ]
- Reimbursement of expenses - 1
26 29
* Miscelleneous expense includes business promotion expenses and other expense incurred by the company
34 Tax expense
[a) Amaunt recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Year ended Year ended
Particutars 3% March 2021 | 31 Mareh 2020
{Z lakhs) {% Takhs)
Current tax for the year 843 2,186
Current tax expense (A} 843 2,186
Deferred taxas far the year
Change in deferred tax assets (2,675) {1,821)
Change in deferred tax liabilities {25) 383
Net defersed tax expense (B} {2,700} {1,438}
Total income tax expense (A+B) (1.857) 748
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Summary of significant accauntlng policles and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

[b) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations (5) (8]
Income tax rejating to above 1 2
Total {4) (6)

{c} Tax reconciliation {for profit and loss)

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at India corporate tax rate. A
reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiptied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 is, as

follows:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

(% lakhs) [% lakhs}

Net profit / {loss) hefore OCl as per PL (7,408) 2,139
Income tax @ Statutory Tax Rate of 25.17% (1,865) 538
Tax effects of
Items which are taxed at different rates - 203
Net expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 8 7
Reccgnition of previously unrecognised temporary differences - 0
Income tax expenses reported in PL {1,857) 748
Tax Rate Effective* 25.06% 34,98%

The Company clected to exerdise the option of a lower tax rate provided under Saction 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, as introduced by the Taxation Laws
{Amendiment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for income tax for the half year ended September
30, 2019 and re-measured its deferred tax assets as on March 31,2019 basis the rate provided in the sald section and continued to apply the aforesaid option as
on March 31 2020. The impact of remeasurement of deferred tax asset as on March 31, 2019 of X 203 lakhs has been recognised in the results for the half year

ended September 30, 2019.

Significant components and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Particulars Asat Recognised in | Recognised in | Recognised in As at

31 March 2029 | Profit and loss ocl equity 31 March 2021
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Timing difference between book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961 - - - - -
Fair valuation of loans assigned - - - - -
MTM on Investments 29 (29) - - -
On account of right to use asset 513 (24) - - 419
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial liabilities at amortized cost 136 97 - - 233
Special Reserve created as per section 28C of NHB Act, 1987 and claimed 128 [0) - - 128
as deduction u/s 36 (1} (viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961
Deferred Tax liability {A) 806 {25} - - 780
Deferred tax assets on account oft
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax 50 59 - - 108
purpaoses on payment basis
Timing difference between book depreciation and income Tax Act, 1961 24 47 - - 71
Provision for expected credit loss on financial assets 2,472 2,734 - - 5,206
Processing fees and LOC adjustment related to financial assets at 523 (203) - - 420
amortized cost
Provision for expensas disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1861 126 25 - - 151
Re-measurement of gain/loss on defined benefit plans 2 2) - - -
On account of lease liabilities 546 (85} - - 461
MTM on Investments - 0 - - 0
Defarred tax asset (B) 3,743 2,675 - - 6,418
Met Deferred tax assets (B-A) 2,937 2,700 - - 5,638
Note :

1. The €ompany offsets tax assets and liabilities if and anly if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

2. Based an the tevel of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable Income over the perfods in which the deferred income tax assets are
deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered reatizable, hawever, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.
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Asat Recognised in | Recognised in | Recognised in Asat

Particulars 31 March 2019 | Profitand loss ocl equity 31 March 2020
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Timing difference between book depreciation and Incomea Tax Act, 1961 8 {8} - - -
Fair valuation of foans assigned 184 (184} - - -
MTM on investments - 29 - - 29
0On account of right to use asset - 513 513
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial labilities at amortized cost 164 {28) 1386
Special Reserve created as per section 29 of NHB Act, 1887 and claimed 67 61 - - 128
as deduction u/s 36 [1} {viti] of Income Tax Act, 1961
Deferred Tax Eability () 423 383 - - 806
Deferred tax assets on account of
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax 27 23 - - 50
purpases on payment basis
Timing difference between book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961 - 24 - - 24
Rent egualisation reserve 6 {6) - - -
Provision for expected eredit loss on finandial assets 1,284 1,188 - - 2,472
Provision for security deposits 1 {1 - - -
Processing fees and LOC adjustment related to financial assets at 479 44 - - 523
amortized cost
Provision for expenses disallowed as per income-tax Act, 1961 109 17 - - 26
Re-measurernent of gain/loss on defined benefit plans - - 2 - 2
On aceount of lease liabilities - 546 - - 546
MTM on Investments 14 [14) - - -
Deferred tax asset {B) 1,920 1,321 2 - 3,743
Net Deferved tax assets {B-A) 1,497 1,438 2 - 2,937
Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

{% lakhs) [% lakhs)

Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Holders (X lakhs) (5,551) 1,391
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for basic earnings per share 308,033,193 290,394,787
Weighted Average numhber of Equity Shares for diluted earnings per share 308,033,193 290,394,787
Earnings per Share
Basic earning per share ¥ {1.80) G.48
Diluted earning per share X (1.80) 0.48
Nominai value of shares X 10 10

Tha Company has not issued any potential equity shares. Accordingly diluted EPS is equal te basic EPS
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Related Party Disclosures

Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship have been disclosed where control exists or related party is KPM, Irrespective of whether or not there have
been transactions between the related parties, In other cases, disclosure has been made only when there have been transactions with thase parties

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Aecounting standard 24, " Related party disclosure” are given below

Nature of Relatfanship

Name of Related Party

Ultimate Holding Company Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited

Holding Company Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore {Holding Coimpany of FICCL)

Fulierton India Credit Company Limited

Fulierton Financizis Holdings Pte Ltd (Holding Campany of Angelica)

Key Management Personnel Dr. Milan Shuster -Independent Director

Mz, Anindo Mukherjee - Non-Execytive Diractor

W5, Sudha Pillai - Independent Director

Ms. Renu Challu - Independent Director till {upto 04 August 2018)

Ms. Rajashree Namhiar - Non-Executive Director {Upto 15th January, 2021)
Mr. Pavan Kaushal - Additional Director in Non-executive capacity {from 15th January, 2021}

Mr. Rakesh Malkkar, Chief Executive Officer and Whole time Director

Transactions during the period with related parties

As at Asat
Nature of Transaction 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Expense incurred by related party on behalf of the Company
Fulletton thdia Credit Cormpany Limited - 40
Income as per Resource sharing agreement
Fulierton India Credit Company Limited 89 -
issue of Share capital (including securities premium) to
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited - 20,000
Expense as per Resousce sharing agreement
Fullerton !ndia Credit Company Limited 1,055 1,063
Cammitment Charges on Committed kines provided by parent Company
Fullerron India Credit Company L.td 221 8
As at As at
Remuneration to Company's Key Management Personnel 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{ lakhs) 1% lalkhs)
Salary, bonus and allowances (ircluding short term benefits) 303 255
Share based payments {on accrual basis recognised in PAL) - 68
Post -employment benefits 3 12
Director's sitting fees 24 19
Total 330 355

Note : The managarial remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the current year is in accordance with the requisita approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 187 read with Schedule V to the Act vide spacial resolution passed at its extra ordinary general meeting held 25 March 2021.

Amount Outstanding to / from related parties:

As at As at
Balance outstanding as at the period end 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Equity investment made by the parent company
Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd 71,000 71,000

Other Payable (Net)
Fullerton india Credit Company Ltd

116

189

Capital Management

Equity shara capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of the Company's capital management. The Company’s ehjectives when managing capital are to safeguard
thelr ability to continue as a going congern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakaholders, and maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with 2 facus on total equity so as to malntaln investor, creditors
and market confidence. The funding requirements are met through equity, borrowIngs and operating cash flows generated, The management monitars the return ch capital and
the board of directars monitors the level of dividends to sharehclders of the Company. The Company may teke appropriate steps in order to malntain, or if necessary adjust, its

capitai structure.

The Cormpany malntains ifs £apital bass to cover tha risks inherent in the business and In meeting the capita! adequacy requlrements of the National HousIng Bank {NHB}. The
Company endeavours to maintaln capital higher than the mandated regulatory norms. The adeguacy of the company's capital is menitored using, among other measures, the
regulations issued MHB, Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported perfod, For details refer "Additional disclosure as per

NHB Notes”
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The total expense charged to income statement of % 313 lakhs [2020: % 333 lakhs) reprasents contributions payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of

31 March 2021
2R Retlrement Benefit Plans
(A) Deflned Contribution Plan
the plan.
{8)

Defined Benefit Obligation
o

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 3% March 2020
{% lakhs) {% [akhs)
Actuarial assumptions
Indian Assured! indian Assured
Mortelity table Lives Martality| Lives Mortality
(2006-08} {2008-08)
Discaunt rate and expected rate of raturn on assets 6.33% p.a. 5.45% p.a.
Rate of increase In compensation 8.00% pa. 9.00% p.a.
Employee turnover !
Category 1 - For basic upto X 1.2 lakhs
Up 1o 4 years 35.68% 67.35%
5 years and above 1.25% 1.00%
Category 2 — For basic more than 1.2 lakhs
Up tod years 29.91% 54.97%
5 years and above 1.25% 1.00%
Assets infarmation;
Insured Managed funds 2 -
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present valie of obligation at the beginning of the year 162 107
Interest expense ] 8
Current service cost 33 24
Past service cost - -
Liakllity Transferred In 1 22
Liability Transferred Qut (3) (6)
Benefit Pald From the Fund - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptiohs a3 {3}
Actuarial (Gains)/Lesses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (72) 8
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience adjustments {8} 2
Present Value of obligation at the end of the year 208 162
Changes in the Fair valee of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginming of the year -
Interest income - -
Contributions by the Employer 2 -
Mortality charges and taxes - -
Benefit Paid from the Fund - R
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income {0) -
Falr Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 2 -
Assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year {208) (162}
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 2 -
Furded Status (Surplus/ (Deficlt)) {205) (182)
Net {Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet {205) {162)
Asat Asat
Expenses recognised in tha Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2021 } 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Current Service Cost 33 24
Past service cost - -
Net interest (income)/ expense g 8
Net gratuity expense recognised 41 32
Ineluded in note 32 ‘Employee benefits expehse’
Expenses recognlsed in the Statement of Other comprehensive income {OCI)
Actuarial gain/ loss on post-employment benefit obligation 5 8
Total remeasurement cost / {credit) for the year recognised in OCI 5 8
As at As at
Reconciliation of Net asset [/ (liability} recognised: 31March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Opening Net Liability 182 106
Expenses recognised at the end of period 41 32
Amount recognised in other comprahensive income 5 8
Net Liablilty/{Asset) Transfer In 1 22
Net {Liability)/Asset Transfer Qut 3 {6
Empleyet's Contribution (2) -
ity/{Asset) Recognized in the Balante Sheet 205 162

v

\/'
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Sensltivity Analysis:

: As at 31 March 2021 (X lakhs) As at 31 March 2020 (X lakhs)
Particulars

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (1% movement) 35 {29} 28 {23}
Future Salary Growth (1% movement) {29) 34 {22} 27
Rate of Employee Turhover (1% movement) g (7 9 {8}

“The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonahly possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
ather assumptians constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it Is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
oceur in isolation of ons ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the abeve sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the profected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the Balance Sheet.”

Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

As at As at
Position as at Year end 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) [% lakhs)
1 2 1
2 2 i
3 3 1
4 3 2
5 3 2
Sum of Years 6o 10 58 52

Risks associated wlith Defined Benefit Plan:

{i} Interest Rate Risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will Increase the present value of the liability requiring highet provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases
the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

{ii) Salary Risk
The present value of the definad benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salarles of members, As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than
assumed level will increase the plan's liability. :

{iii} Investment Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to matket yiekls at the end of the reporting period on
government bands. if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan In India, it has a relstively balanced mix of investments in
government securitles, and cther debt instruments.

{iv] Asset Liability Matching {ALM) Risk

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flaw. Since the pian [s invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk,
fv]} Mortality Risk

since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable €lf retitement age only, plan does not hava any longevity risk.

{vi) Concentratlon Risk

Plan 15 having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as
insurahce companias have to follow regulatory guidelines.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
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{C} <Compensated ahsences
Asat As at
Particulars %1 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Actuarial assumptions
Mortaiity table Indian Assured| Indian Assured
Lives Mortality| Lives Mortality
[2006-08) {2006-03)
Discount rate and expected rate of return on assets 6.33% p.a. 5.45% p.a.
Rate of increase in compensation 8.00% p.a. 9.00% p.a.
Employee turnover ;
Category 1 — For basic upte 2 1.2 lakhs
Up to 4 years 35.68% 67.35%
5 years and above 1.25% 1.00%
Category 2 — For basic more than % 1.2 lakhs
Uptod years 29.91% 54.97%
5 years and abave 1.25% 1%
Funding status unfunded Unfunded
Projected Benefit Obligation 80 12
Employee stock appreciation rights
The Company kas an has cash settled share based payments scheme, under which grants were made as per details provided below:
Date of Grant Grant 4 Grant 5 Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 9A Grant 6A Grant 10
1-Apr-14 1-Apr-15 1-Apr-16 1-Apr-i7 t-Apr-18 1-Apr-19 1-Apr-19 1-Apr-17 1-Apr-20
Value of the Grant % 115 Lakhs ¥ 115 Lakhs %143 Lakhs ¥ 155 Lakhs 2 126 Lakhs X 179 Lakhs % 38Lakhs % 251 Lakhs % 155 Lakhs
Achlevement of Profit before tax (PBT) znd Achlevement of PAT and ROE Targets as per approved plan Achievement of |Achievernent of
Parformance Return on Equity (ROE) targets zs per approved specific targets |certain targets
Cendition plan
Graded Tranche |: 33% |Tranche ): 33% |Tranchel: 33% [Tranche |: 33% |Tranche |: 33% {Tranche |: 33% {Tranche |: 33% {Tranche |:50% [Tranche |: 33%
Vesting vesting on 1st |vesting on 1st Jvesting on Ist |vesting on dst |vesting on ist |vestlng on 1st ivesting on 1st |vestingon st [vesting on 1st
(subject to December December December December December December Dacember December 2020 {December 2023
achlevernent 2017 2018 2015 2020 2021 2022 2022
of
Tranche [I: Tranche |I: 33% Tranche li: 33% [Tranche H: 33% {Tranche |1} 33% |Tranche li: 33% | Tranche ii: 33% | Tranche il: 50% |Tranche il: 33%
33% vesting  |vesting on 1st |vesting on 1st |vesting on 1st |vesting on 1st jvesting on 1st |vesting on 1st |vestingon1st |vesting on 1st
on 1st December December December Decermbar Dacembear Pecember December 2021 { December 2024
December 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2023
20i8
Tranche 11 Tranche il Tranche ill: Tranche il Tranche lil: Tranche I Tranche l1: - Tranche lll: 3454
34% vesting  |34% vesting on | 34% vesting on |34% vesting on |34% vesting on |34% vesting on [34% vesting on vesting on 1st
on 1st 1st December |istOecember |IstDecember [ist December |1st December |[1stDecember December 2025
December 2020 2021 2022 023 2024 2024
- 2019
Vesting Tranche |: 3 Tranche ! 3 Tranchel: 3 Tranchel: 3 Tranche |: 3 Tranchel: 3 Trancha : 3 Tranche |: 3 Tranche |: 3
period years 8 vears 8 months |years 8 months |years 8 months [years 8 months |years 8 months {vears 8 months [years 8 months |years 8 months
{including menths
Trancheii:4 |Tranche(l:4  |Tranchell:4 |Trancheil:4 |Tranchell:4 |Tranchel:4 (Trancheli:4 [Tranchell: 4 Tranche li: 4
years 8 years 8 months |years 8 months years 8 months |years 2 months |years 8 months |vears 8 months |years 8 months |years 8 months
months

Tranche ;5 {Tranche i S

Tranche {il: 5

Tranche Iil: §

Tranche lil: &

Tranche lil: §

Tranche Ili: 5

Tranche HlI: 5

yaars 8 years 8 months |years 8 manths |years 8 months |years 8 months |years 8 months |years 8 months years B months
months

Exergise Within 30 days from each vesting date but not later than 2 years from the date of last vasting except for Grant 1 & 6A where period is 3 years

periad |

WMethed of Cash Paycut as perterms of the scheme

Settlement

The estimated fair value of the grant at a notional value of % 10 per unit {as at the date of grant} 1s as below:

Particulars Grant 4 ._Grant § Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant9 Grant 9A Grant 6A Grant 10

As at 31 March 2021 NA 18.12 14.00 iz.62 11.08 8.74 8.74 12.62 7.51
As at 31 Mareh 2020 30.00 25.32 19,47 17.25 15.14 1191 1181 17,25 NA
As at 31 March 2019 25.84 20.88 16.18 14.47 12.70 NA NA 14.47 NA
As at 31 March 2018 19.76 1586 12.54 11,38 NA NA NA 1l.3¢ NA
Exercise price vest 1 17.01 15.96 16,18 17.25 i1.08 NA NA 17.25 NA
Exetcise price vest 2 13.76 20.88 19.47 12.62 NA NA NA 12.62 NA
Exerdse price vest 3 25.84 25.32 14.00 NA NA NA NA NA NA

kv
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Fair value is computed using the method provided tn the scheme for estimating the valuation of the grant which is linked to the Net Book Value of the business and board
approved business plan.

The movement of the stock appreciation rights during the year is as under:

As at Asat
Particulars {No. of Options} 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Optiens outstanding as at the beginning of the year 5,988,750 5,371,128
Options granted during the year 1,593,000 2,165,000
Options ferfeited during the year (1,543,500) [852,500)
Options exercised during the year {37,125) (244,875)
Options lapsed during the year - -
Grants of employee transferred during the year from halding company - 150,000
Options Outstanding as at the end of the year 5,413,875 5,939,250
Optians vested and exercisabie 587,250 49,500
Expense recognlised (% In Lakhs) {71) 88
40 Segment Information
Business Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Dedlsion Maker {CODM). The CODM regularly monitors and
raviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of "Financing"”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Oparating Segments”, the Company's entire business falls under
this one operational segment.
Entity wide disclosures
The Cormpany operates in a single bustness segment le. financing, which has similar risks and returns taking Into account the organisational structure and the internal reporting
systems. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the company’s total revenue in year ended 31 March 2021 or
31 March 2020. The Company operates in single geography i.e. India and therefore geographical information is not required to be disclosed separately.
41  Contingent Liability and commitments

a) Contingent liabllities
The Company has assessed its obligations arlsing in the normal course of business, including pending litigations, proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts
including derivative and long term contracts. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

a) Contingent liabilities

As at Asat

Particular 31 ¢arch 2021 | 31 March 2020
Guarantees 25 -
Contingent liability for Iitigations pending against the Company 3 1

b} Capital and other commitments

d

The Company is obligated under various capital contracts. Capital contracts are work/purchase orders of a capital nature, which have been committed. Further, the commitments
have fixed expiration dates and are contihgent upen the borrower's ahility to maintain specific credit standards.

(i) Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining to be executed on capltal account and not provided for as at 31 March 2021 is ¥ 32 Lakhs {31 March 2020: 38 Lakhs).

(i) Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed as at 31 March 2021 were % 21,835 Lakhs (31 March 2020: ¥ 13,661 Lakhs).

c} Litigation

Litigations constitutes the number of pending litigations filed by customers/vendors/ex-employees/others against the Company for service deficiency/title claims/monatary
claims/back wages/reinstatement issues respectively which is in the course of business as usual,

Asldes the above the Company in its rightful entitlement Initiates Civli or Criminal litigations for recovery of loan and enforcing security interest.
A provision is noted/created where an unfavourable outcome is deemed probabie based on review of pending litigations with its legal counsels including loss contingency on

account of such litigation and claims, and classification of such contingency as ‘low’, ‘medium’ or ‘high” with due provisioning thereof . The management believes that the outcome
of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, its operations and cash flows.

Tax contingencies

Various tax-ralated legal proceedings are pending against the Company at various levels of appeal with the tax authorities. Management to best of its judgement and estimates
where a reasonable range of potential outcomes is estimated basls available information accrues lability, Based on judicial precedents in the Company's and other cases and upon
consultation with tax counsels, the management believes that it is more likely than not that the Company's tax position will be sustained. Accordingly, provision has been made in
the accounts wheraver required. Disputed tax issues that are classified as remote are not disclosed as centingent fiabilities by the Company.

N
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EMI Moratorium as per RBI Regulatory package

In accordance with Moratorium policy, framed as per guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of india (R8I} dated March 27, 2020, April 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 relating to ‘COVID-19 -
Regulatory Package’ and approved by the Beard of Diractors of the Company, the Compahy has granted moratorium to its ellgible custorners for the equated monthly instalmants
(EMIs} falling due between March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020, as applicable. In respect of such accounts, staging of those accounts is based on the day past tue status considering
the benefit of guidelines referred to above. The Company continues to recognize interest Income during the moratarium period. The Company has considered appropriate criteria
for assessing the change in credit risk on account of maeratorium accepted by the customer and their repayment behavior post moratorivm.

Salient features of moratorium pollcy
- EMI moraterium policy approved by Board of Directors of the Company
- implementation process note approved by CEQ, CRO and CFO of the Company
- Approval for moratoriuim proposal based on credit approval delegation matrix of the Company
- Criterla established for elighility of customers fer avalling moratorium benefits in line with RBI circular and guldzlines
- Changes in repayment schedules of customers based on capitalization of interest and collection of the same from customer in any cne of the following manner :
1} immediately after the moratorium ends {l.e. along with June month’s EMI)
2] By adding tenor at the end of loans and keeping EMI intact
3) By increastng EMI over the balance tenor including extended tenor
- The rescheduling of payments, inciuding Interest, will not quallfy as a default for the purposes of supervisary reporting and reporting to Credit Information Companies
- far regulatory reporting and reporting to credit information companies, the accounts will continue to be in same classification as at 1st March’ 20 for up to 6 months fLe.
August'20, there will not be any change in asset classification . There will be no “days past due” (dpd) movement for these accounts for the moratorlum/deferment period
- Asset classification criterial and provision criterial related to portfolio lcans as per RBI prudential norms

Resolution framework for Covid 19 related stress

Reserve Bank of India [RBI) issued circular dated 6 August 2020 prescribing resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress permitting lending institutions to implement a
resolution plan for cerporate, MSME and personal loans.

Salient features of the Scheme are as under :

- The scheme covers those borrowers whose accounts were classified as ‘standard’ but not in default for mare than 30 days with the Company as on the reference date, i.e. 1
March 202€. The eligibie borrawers’ account should be continued to be classified as ‘standard’ untll invocation of the resclution i.e. the date when the parties agree to proceed
with a resolutlon plan.

- One time restructuring is implemented as per the policy approved by Board of Directors of the Company prescribing the eligibility criteria and terms of resolution plan for eligihie
borrawers based on reassessment of repayment behavior of customer, appropriate due diligence etc.

- The Lending Institutions are required to make adequate disclosures In the format provided in the August 6 Circular till all exposures pertaining to which resolution plan was
implemented is elther fully extingulshed or completely slips into NPA, whichever is earier,

Disclosura as required by RBI for moratorium and resolution framework are provided under RBI disclosure section, refer note 55 (xxiii}.

Supreme Court Order dated 23 March 2921

The Henourable Supreme Court of Indiz (Hen'ble SC) In a public interest litigation {Gajendra Sharma Vs. Union of India & Anr), vide an interim order dated September 03, 2020
{"interim Order), had directed banks and NBFCs that accounts which were not declared NPA till August 31, 2020 shall not be declared as NPA ti} further orders.

Basis the said interim crder, untii 28 February 2021, the Company did not classify any additional borrower account as MPA which were not NPA till August 31, 2021, however,
during such pericds, the Company has classified these accounts as stage 3 based on thelr DPD as at reporting perlod and provisioned accordingly for financis! reporting purposes,

The Interim order granted to not declare accounts as NPA stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of the Hon'hle 5C in the matter of Small Scale Industrial
manufacturers Association vs, UQ! & Ors, and other connected matters, In accordance with the Instructions in paragraph 5 of the RBI circular no. RB1/2021-22/17DOR.
STR.REC,4/21.04.048/2021.22 dated April 07, 2021 issued in this connection, the Cornpany has declared the borrowers accounts as NPA as per the extant RBI instructions / IRAC
norms and continued to classified these as Stage 3 as per £CL framework under Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2021,

In accordance with the instructions in aforementioned RBI clrcular dated April 07 2021, and the Indian Banks' Association {'{BA'} advisory ietter dated 19 April 2021 the Company
has estimated the amaunt of 'Interest on interest' charged to borrowers during the moratorium period .e. st March 2020 to 31st August 2020 and made a provision amounting to
R 154 lakhs in the financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021,

Leases
Implemeantation of Ind AS 116

The Company has entered into leasing arrangerents for premises. Majority of the [eases are cancellable by the Company. ROU has been included after the iine 'Property, Plant and
Equipment” and Lease Liability has been included under ‘Other Financial Lisbilities” in the Balance Sheet.

Cn 24 july 2020, the Ministry of Corparate Affairs {MCA) has issued a Practical expedient for Ind AS 118 Leases, which permits lessees not to account for COVID-19 related rent
concessions as a lease madification. The Company has, for the Rent Concessions received, chose not to apply the practical expadiant and accordingly has re-measured the Lease
Liability by decraasing the carrying amaunt to reflect the partiat or full termination of the lease for lease madifications that decrease the scope of the lease and recopnized any gain

or loss refating o the partial or full termination of the iease in the Staterent of Profitand Loss and also made correspording adjusted in the amount of Right of Use Asset,

{i} Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

As at As at

Particular 31 ivarch 2021 | 31 March 2020
a) Right-of-usa assets (net) 1,646 2,020
b} Lease liabilities

Current 279 267

Non-current 1,552 1,804
Totat Lease Habilities 1,831 2,171
¢ Additions to the Right-of-use assets 408 261
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{ii) Amount Recognised in profit & loss

As at As at

Particular . 31 March 2021 ; 31 March 2020
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 345 392
Interast expenses {included in finance cost) 118 211
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease llabilitles - -
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets - -
Expenses relating to short-term |eases and leases of low value assets - -
{iii) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liabllity

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Less than one year 433 454
One to five years 1565 1,688
More than five years 342 769
Total payments 2,340 2,911
{iv]) Cash flows

Asat As at
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
The total cash outflow of leases 433 464
v} Future Commitments

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Future undiscounted lease payments to which leases is not yet commenced - -

{wi} Future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the measurement of lease liakilities and arz as follow :

(2) Variable lease payments - This variability will typically arise from either inflation or market-based pricing ad[ustments. Currently, the Company do hot have any lease which have
variable lease payment terms based on inflation or market based pricing,

(b) Extension options and termination aptions - The table above represents Company's best estimate of future cash out flows for leases, including assumptions regarding the
exerclsing of contractual extension and termination options.

{c) Residual vaiue guarantees - The Company has asset retiral obligations and accordingly have recognised them as part of ROU.

{d) The Company does hot have have any lease arrangements as at reporting date which are not yet commenced ta which the Company is committed.

{vii} The Company currently dues not have any sale and lease back transactions. The Company does not have any restrictions or covenants imposed by the lessor on its operating
leases which restrict its husinesses.

Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED] by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based
on the imformation received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the disclosure relating to arount unpaid
as at the y=ar ended together with interest paid/payable is disclosed below:

As at As at
Particular 31 march 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
The pringipal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid ta any supplier as at the end of each accounting| 37 o]

yeur

The amount of Interest baid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with - -
the amaunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the periad of delay In making payment {which hava been pald but beyond the appointed day during - -
the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Mediurm Enterprise Developmeant Act, 2006,

The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are - -
zctually paid to the small enterprise for the purpase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro smaft and
iediurn Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

b
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Corparate Soclal Responsibilities Expenses

Gross amount required to be spent by the company is T 14 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2 Nil lakhs for 31 March 2020.

The details of amounts spent towards CSR are as under ;

As at As at
Particular : 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {® lakhs)

i} Construction / acquisition of any asset
i} On purpose other than (i} above
Amount spent in cash 14 .
The Company's CSR policy is both community and anvironment- based, Various programmes are planned in areas as diverse as health, educations, livelihaod genarations, skill
developments and rural development.

Events after reporting date

There have heer no events after the reporting date that require adjustment or disclosure In these financial statements.

Support Service Cost

During the year, the helding company laased [ts premises to its subsidiary, Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited to carry out its operations. The halding company has
entered into resource shating agreement with the subsidiary company, as per which the haldinfg company has agreed to share premises shd sther reseurces and thereby to
facliitate achieve economies of scale and aveld dunlication.The reimbursement of cast is calculated as pe arm's length price certified by the independant third party,

During the year the Company has pald % 1,085 lakhs {31 March 2020; % 1,063 lakhs} an account of above mentioned arrangement.

During the year, the Company has aiso co-shared the premises to its holding company to carry out its operations. The Cornpany has entared into resource sharing agreement with
its holding campany, Under the arrangement the campany hava leased the premises and other resources to facilitate the business operation. The raimbursement of cost is
calculated as pe arm's length price certified by the independent third party.

During the year the Company has charged to % 89 lakhs {31 March 2020; X nil lakhs) on account of above mentioned arrangement.

IRDA
Disclosure as par Schedule V| B for Insurance commission income earned during the year ended:

Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

{%1akhs) {% lakhs})

iCICI Lombard General Insurance Company Lt 5 396
TATA AIG General insurance Company - E5
HOFC Life Insurance Company Lid 2 -
ICICI Prudential Life fnsurance Company Ltd 3 2

There was no amount due and cutstanding to be credited to investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 Mareh, 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil}.
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Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company's primary focus Is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company
places emphasis on risk management practices to ensure an appropriate balance between risks and returns, The Board of Directors of the Company {BOR) along with the
management are primarily responsibie for Financial Risk Management of the Company. The BOD's oversight of risk includes review and approval of key risk strategles and poficies,
These are monitored and governed through the Risk Oversight Committee (ROC). Audit Committee [AC) ensures that an independent assurance is pravided to the BOD.

The ROC contrals and manages an inherent risks related to the Company's activities by the following risk categories:

Risk Exp e arising from Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, bank balance ether than cash and|RQC s actively involved in the following:

cash equivalents, trade & other receivables, financial assets

- Qversight over the tmplementation of Cate Credit Pelicies and Remedial
measured at amortised cost

Management Paolicies of the Company;

- Review of the overal} portfollo credit perfaormance of the Company and
establishing concentration fimits by product programs, collateral types, tenors
and customer profile;

- Determination of portfolio credit guality by reviewing observed default

rates, provisions held, write-offs and status of recoveries from defaulting
borrowers; and

- Review of product programs and recommending improvements/
amendments thersto.

Liguidity Risk Financisl liahilities BOD is responsible for setitng the strategic direction for the Company, This Includes,
establishing the liquidity risk appetite and the liquidity required to fulfli its strategic
Initiatives, setting boundaries/limits within such levels of tolerance and approving|
the policies that govern rigk management under business as usuzl and stressed
conditions.

Liquidity risk Is managed by the Asset Uability Committee (ALCO), based on the
Comgany's Liquidity Palicy and procedures which are based on guidelines provided
by ROC. ALCO derives its authority from the ROC and is responsible for ensuring
adherence to the liquidity and asset — flability management limits set by the BOD
and to oversee implementation of the strategic direction articulated by the 80D,
ALCO not only ensuras that the Company has adequate liguidity on an an-going
basis but also examines how liquidity requirements are likely to evolve under
different assumptions.

Market Risk - Forgign Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities  not|ROC is nvolved in the formulation of policias for monitoring market risk. The risk i3

Exchange denominated in functional currency managed through close identification, supervision and monitoring of risks arising

Market Risk - Interest Rate / |Investments in equity securities, units of mutual funds, bonds,|from movements in market rates such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,

Dividend Coupon goverments securities, certificate of daposits and commercial |traded prices and credit spreads, which may result i a loss of earnings and capital.
paper

Credit Risk

Cracit risk Is the risk of finangial loss te the Company if a custamer or counter party to the financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arisas principally from
the cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade & other receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost,

The Risk Management Policy addresses the recognitian, measurement, monitoring and reperting of the Credit risk. The ROC reviews and approves Loan Product programs on an on-
going basis. Key aspects of the praduct programs outline the framework of any credit financial praduct being offered by the Company. Within this established framework, credit
policies are established to manage the sourcing of proposals, channels of business acquisition, process of underwriting, information systems involved, credit apptaisal, verification,
documentation, disbursement and collection / recovery procedures.

Product level credit risk palicies are implemented to align all new customer actiuisitions across locatians and regions, Individual profiles, income levels, leverage positions, coltateral
types and value, source of income and continuity of employment/busingss.

The Company has additionally taken the following measures:-

+ Credit risk team is appointed to enhance focus on monitoring of borrowers snd to faciiitate proactive action wheraver required,
- Enhanced menitoring of portfolio through perlodic reviews.

- Periodic trainings to its credit officers

Credit approval

The Board of Directors has delegated credit approval authority to the Campany’s Credit Committee, Chief Risk Officer / National Credit Manager, Regicnal Credit Manager and
Credit Manager under the Company’s Credit Policy. The branch credit team/operations team monitors compliance with the terms and conditions of credit facllities prior to
disbursement. It also reviews the completeness of documentation and creation of security by the borrower.

The central operations team verifies adharence to the terms of the credit approval prior ta the dishursement of credit facilities.

Credit underwriting

The Company’s cradit officers evaluate credit proposals on the basis af credit underwriting policies and procadures approved by the management. The critaria typically inciude
factors such as the customer eligibility, income and debt obligation assessment, nature of the product, customer scorecards wherever applicable, histotical experience, type of
collaterai provided and demographic psrameters. Any deviations need to be approved at the designated levels. The company offers to add on funding to existing borrowers basis
credit performance governed through credit approvals and appraved policy.

Extarnal agencies such as field investigation agencies facilitate a due diligence process Including visits to offices and residences, risk contalnment agencies for document frauds,
legal & valuer agencies for property evaluation.
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Analysis of risk concentration

Since the Company provides only retall loans, there is not significant concentratlon risk at the borrawer / counterparty level. The maximum lozn outstanding to any individuai
borrower or counterparty as of 31 March 2021 was % 1,518 iakhs, befare taking into account collatersl ar other credit enhancements or undisbursad cammitments,

Stress testing of portfolio

The Company evaluates potentially advarse scenarios that may impact the business or portfolio performance. Annual stress test exercise covaring the entire portfolio is performed
to assess vulnerability of the business extreme scenarios te possible extreme scenarios and effectivaness of managemant actions, The assessed Impact is incorporated into risk
zppetite of the Company to ensure regulatory compliance,

Exposutre 1o credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum amount of cred|t exposure. The maximum exposure to credt risk is as per the table below, it being total of carrying
amount of cash nd cash equivalent, bank balance other than cash and cash aquivalents, trade and other receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

As at As at
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs} {% lakhs
MaxImum exposure te credit risk 435,981 403,085

Analysis of iputs to the ECL madel under multiple economic scenarios
Expected credit losses are a probability-welghted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash fiows due to the Company In accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the Company expects to receive) discounted at an approximation to the IR,

Cash shortfalls are identified as follows.
- For 12-month ECLs: Cash shortfells resulting from default events that zre possible In the next 12 months.
- Forlifetime ECLs: Cash shortfalls resulting from default events that are possible over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For undrawn leah comsmitments, a cash shortfall is the difference between:
- the contractual cash flows that are due to the Corpany if the holder af the loan commitment draws down the loan; and
- the cash flows thet the Company expects to raceive if the ioan is drawn down.

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for cash and cash equivalents, bank balshce, investment, trade and other recefvables, loans and advances together with
loan commitmeants and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, collectively named as “financiai assets at amortised cost’,

The Company performs a collective assessment an a homogeneous paol of autstanding loans grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristic based on the type of products sheed
down to geagraphy as part of the impairment analysis.

For estimation of ECL, the entire portfolio is broadly partitioned into products like Loan against property and Housing Loans, Products are further segregated on geography level
and sectors. This portfolio is used to arrive exposure at Default, Probability of default and Lass given default.

The Company follows the expected credit loss (ECL) methodology based on historically available information and projection of macroeconomic indicators in arder to determine the
impairment allowance required against different categaries / pool of loan accounts.

All defining parameters (PD, LGD, EL Adjustment factor} are estimated on a half yearly frequency. However, required changes may be done more frequently in case of change in
market condition, portfolic changes and other scenarios.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise aver the life of the asset [the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since its initial recognition, 1n which case, tha allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit foss (12mECL).

The 12mECL is part of LTECL that represent the ECLs from default events an a financial asset that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Definition of Default

As per the Company's policy, ail assets are classified into stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3, Assets up to 29 DPD [days past due) are classified as stage 1 assets. Assets with DPD of 30
days up to 89 days are classified as stage 2 assets and assets with DPD greater than 90 days are dlassified as stage 3 assets. The Company considars a financizl instrurent defauited
and thersfore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of gualitative
assessment, of whether the tustomer is in default, the company also canslders a variety of instanges that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. In such instances, the Company treats
the customer at default and thetefore assesses such loans as stage 3 for ECL caltulations, following are such instznces:

- If the ¢ustomer has regUested restructuring in repaynient terms, such restructured, rescheduled or renegatiated accounts

- A stage 3 customer having other loans which are in stage 1 or stage 2

- cases where company suspects fraud and legal proceedings are initiated,

The Compzny continues to recognize interest income during the moraterium period. As per assessment done by the Company and in the absence of other customer related credit
risk indicators, the granting of moratorium pericd does not result in automatically triggering of significant increase in credit risk criteria of Ind AS 109.

The Company continuously manitors ait financial assets subject to ECLs. in order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments are subject to 12mECL or LTEGL,
the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company eonsiders sn exposure to have significantly increased in
credit risk since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 29 days past due. The Gompany alsc applies 2 gualitative method far triggering 2 sighificant increase
In credit risk for an asset. This will be the case for exposure that meets certain haighted risk criteria, such as political situations and exceptions to narmal economic sceharios. Such
factors are based on its expert judgement and relevant historical experiences. Significant increase in Credit risk has also been recognised for borrowers to whom One Time
Restructuring has been granted on account of Covid-19, and | TECL has been computed far such borrowers,

The Prohability of Default {PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the partfalic.

The Company coltects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed by Product and geography. The Campany employs statistical models of flow
aralysis and marginal default rate technigue to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining fifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected ta change
as & result of the passage of time.
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The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and accrued interest whether due or not.

The Loss Given Default [LGD] is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It Is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due [net of recovery cost} and those that the lender would expect to receive. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the discounting
factor. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company collects a list of all the defaulters and trackad from the first time they become non-performing asset {*Stage 3"). The Company calculates the LGD based on the
present value of month on month recovery post default for Stage 1 and 2 and takes intc account of the Stage 3 recovery and present vatue of the actual Stage 3.

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financiat statements. To reflect this, qualitative
adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

EL Adjustment Factor is factor used to adjust the ECL computation to eliminate the bizsness in different ticket size and number of loan accounts considering the nature of
business/products,

Forward Looking Information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company arrives at forward-looking PD estimates through the incorporation of forward-looking macro-economic factars. The
various macro-economic factors considered are Gross Domestic Product (% real change), Consumer Price Index Change (%), Lending Interest Rate (%), Private consumpticn (% real
change), Manufacturing (% real change), Industrial production (% change), Recorded unemplayment {%). Product-wise selection of macro-ecancmic factors is done basis the best
fitilng of the macro indicators with the historical loss trends also taking into account management views, if any, on the drivers of the portfolio, Apart from considering the base
case of the macro cutlook, two more scenatios an optimistle and pessimistic views of the outlook are also evaluated taking into account the external market conditions.
Appropriate weightage is assigned to each of the scenarios to arrive at the final estimates. Presently, a higher deterioration of the base macro outlook is done to arrive at the
pessimistic view and also its weightage has been increasar vis-a-vis pre-Covid levels In view of external canditions. The inputs and models used for calzulating ECLs may not always
capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements, To reflect this, quaiitative adjustments or overlays are cccasionaily made as temporary adjustments
when such differences are significantly material.

Reconciliation of ECL balances in given below :

Partlculars As at 31 March 2021 (X lakhs) As at 31 March 2020 {2 lakhs}

Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 2,538 773 6,944 10,255 1,639 423 2,516 4,578
New assets originated or purchased 132 - - 132 1,804 - - 1,804
Assets derecognised or repaid [349) {19} {1,953} {2,321) (2343) (49) {1,084) {1,476)
Net transfers toffrom Stage 1 253 {90) (163} - 77 {286) {51} -
Net transfers toffrom Stage 2 {224) 577 (353} - (45) 72 27} -
Net transfers to/from Stage 3 {104) (421) 525 - (55) (270} 325 -
Remeasurement of ECL . {696} 7,460 9,776 16,540 {538) 624 5,848 5,934
Amounts written off {1) (8 (3,738) (3,747) {1} (1) (583) (585)
ECL allowance - closing halance 1,549 8,272 11,038 20,859 2,538 7713 6,944 10,255

Credit Quality

The Company has classified portfolio loans as financial assets at amortized cost and has assessed it at the collective pool level. The vintage analysis methodology has been used to
create the PD term structure which incorporates both 12 month (Stage 1 Loans) and lifetime PD (Stage 2 and stage 3 Loans). The vintage analysis captures a vintage default
experience across 2 particular portfolio by tracking the periodic slippages. The vintage slippage experience/default rate is then used to build the PD term structure,

The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the LGD vintage. The LGD vintage takes into account the recovery experience acress accounts of a particular portfolio
post default. The recoveries are tracked and discounted to the date of defauit using the effective interest rate.

Accordingly, the Company analysis exposure to credit risk on the basis of vintage experience across its products. The Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3
based on vintage experience.

N As at 31 March 2021 {% lakhs} As at 31 March 2020 [¥ lakks)
Particulars
Stage 3 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balante 370,803 8,674 14,505 393,982 288,730 4,810 5,900 299,440
New assets originated or purchased 55,794 - - 55,794 163,830 - - 163,890
Assets derecognised/repaid/ recovery (54,267} {67) {5,454} {59,788} (64,543} {666) {2,768) (67,977)
Met transfers toffrom Stage 1 1,350 {1,010} (341) - 420 {300) (120) -
Net transfers toffrom Stage 2 {32,748} 33,487 (737) - {7,848} 7,912 (64) -
Net transfers to/from Stage 3 {15,199) (4,729} 19,928 - {9,735) (3,071} 12,808 -
Amounts written off (134) {133} {6,962) {7,229) {111) {11} (1,249} {1,371)
Closing bakance 325598 36,222 20,939 382,759 370,803 8,674 14,505 393,982
Interest accrued and other amortised cost 4,700 1,002 1,092 6,774 4,957 225 934 6,116
330,298 37,224 22,011 389,533 375,760 8,899 15,439 400,098
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Trade receivahles

Exposures to customers' outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine Incurred and expected cradit losses, Historical trends of
caollection from counterparties on timely basis refiects low level of credit risk. Company creates ECL on trade receivable balances in line with board’s approved provisioning poficy.

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance and other financial assets

The Company has a low credit risk In respact of its exposure with financial institutions and other financial assets. funds are invested after taking into account parameters like
safety, iquidity and post tax returns etc. The Company avoids concentration of credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit rating profile and sound
financial position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are maohitored on an angoing basis.

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances with banks and financial institutions. The credit worthiness of such banks and financiat institutions is
evaluated by the management on an ¢ngoing basis and is considered to be high.

While exposure with respect to security deposlt and advence given for business purpose is spread across and carry low credit exposure as the Company has possession of rental
premises and other with whom the Company has warked with for a number of years.

Write off policy

The Company has laid down explicit pollcies on loan write-offs to deal with assets which are impaired due to customer’s inability to repay the loan beyond a timeline wherain loan
against properiy and home toan is written-off at 720 Days Past Due, '

Collateral management and associated risks

The Campany holds collateral like residential, commercial land & building against its secured portfolic loans such as housing loan, lean against properties, and developer funding,

The Company has a collateral management system to address the risks associated in the mortgage business. Onsite inspections by independent experts are cartied out to satisfy
that the vaiue of the collateral is sufficient to cover the associated credit risk and that the claim on property is legally enforceable, Credit policy guldelines clearly specify Loan to
value (LTV) ratios and ensures a maximum permiss/hle limit on exposure in any collateral backed funding. This takes care of any revaluation or depreciation in value of asset due to
unforgseen circumstances,

The Collection team foliows up with the customers through field visits as well as through telecommunication for payment of over dues. Collection team is also responsible for
initiating legal action including repossession and selling of collaterals. Negotiations with customers with respect to settlernent of loans are also carrled out by the authorlsed
personnel from collection team. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obiigors.

An estimate of the lower of fair value of coliateral and other security enhancements held and carrying amounts of the financial assets as at the reporting date Is shown below. This
excludes the value of coliaterai and other security enhancements that are determined not to be enforceable (legally or practically) by the Company.

Maximum Collaterals
As at 31 March 2021 { in lakhs) exposure to {Land & Net Exposure | Assoclated ECLs
credit risk building)
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 66,336 - 66,336 -
Loans & Advances {gross) 389,533 1,104,756 {715,223) {20,858)
Trade receivables 68 - 68 -
Financlal Assets at EVTPL 30,750 - 30,750, -
Other financial asset 204 - 204 -
Total Financial Asset 487,591, 1,104,756 {617,165) {20,859)
Maximum Collaterals
As at 31 March 2020 % in lakhs) exposure to {land & Net Exposure | Associated ECLs
credit risk buiding)
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 12,140 - 12,140, -
Loans & Advances (gross) 400,098 1,034,742 (634,644} {10,255)
Trade receivables 25 - 25 -
Financial Assets at FVTPL 38,512 - 38,512 -
Other financial asset 1,076 - 1,076 -
Total Financial Asset ) 451,851 1,034,742 {582,891} {10,255}

The value of the ecliateral for residential & commercial mortgage loans is based on the coltateral value at origination, For credit-impaired loans the value of colateral is based on
the most recent appraisals.




Fullerton india Home Finance Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2021

The below takles provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held and credit enhancements for stage 3 assets.

Fair value of collateral and credit enhancements held under the base case scgnario

Maximum Collaterals
Portfolio Loans exposure to {Land & Net Exposure | Assoclated ECLs
credit risk bullding)
As at 31 March 2021 (X in fakhs) 20,939 34,815 (13,875) 11,038
As at 31 March 2020 (T in jakhs} 14,505 45,001 {30,586) 6,944

Ligquidity Risk
Licquidity risk is the risk that the Company, though sohvsnt, sither does nat have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fall dus, or can secure them
only at excessive costs. Liquidity risk management invalves estimating and managing the liquidity requirements of the Company within acceptable structural houndaries and in a

cost-efficient manner, and invalves the Board and senior management’s development and oversight of a comprehensive process that Identifies, measures, monitors and contrals
the Campany’s liguidity risk exposure.

The Company maintains a reliable management information system deslghed to provide the senior management with timely and forward-lacking information on the liquidity
pasition of the Corrpany. In terms of actions, the Company's liquidity risk managemant policy Is gulded by the following principles:

1. Lender diversification demonstrated by an increase in lenders, acrass instruments {bank finance, bands, maney market instruments, sefl down of loan portfolio of loan portfolio)
and liquidity pocts (banks, mutual funds, insurance companies, penston funds, foreign portfolio investors)

2. Matching of asset and liability tenor

5. Maintenance of adequate liguidity buffer as per internal policy

4. structural liquidity mismateh

Toaols to manage Liquidity Risk

The Company manages its fiquidity risk through liguldity gap analysis, monitoring concentration limits {tenor, countetparty and instrument type) and liquidity ratios.

Projected rolling cash flow for the next 6 months is prepared which provides a gap analysis of expected cash Infiow and outflow on a given date. Treasury is responsikle 1o prepare
3 sultable funding plan based on the cash flow.

single tender limit, single financial instrument or category limit and negative gap mismatches are monitored on a monthly basis to ensure these are within the policy limits.

The Company managss liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and by having access to funding through an adeguate amount of committed credit lines.
The Company maintalns flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines to meet obligations when due.

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The tables below analyse the Company's firancial akilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities for which the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2021 {% in lakhs) Carsying value | Within 1year | Lto5years | After5 years Total
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 257 207 - - 297
Borrowings other than debt securities 286,263 86,967 241,427 1,313 329,706
Debt Securities {including Subordinated tiabilities) 107,403 28,954 88,972 10,231 128,157
Lease liabilities 1,831 433 1,565 342 2,340
Other financial liabilities {exciuding lease lizhillties) 12,776 12,776 g - 12,776
As at 31 March 2020 (% In lakhs) Carrying value | Within 1year | 1ta5years After 5 years Total
Financial Eahilities

Trade payzbles 188 198 - - 198
Borrowings other than dabt securitias 280,342 86,701 247,249 1,514 335,464
Debt Securities £9,401 42,430 58,304 2,730 103,464
Lease liabilities 2,171 454 1,688 769 2,911
Other financial lizbilities {excluding lease liabilities) 4,535 4,277 258 - 4,535

* The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect interest rates at the reporting date and these amount may change as market interest ratas change.

The Company's expected cash flows on some financial assets and financial liabilitias vary significantly from the contractual cash flows. As part of the management of liquldity risk
arising from financial liabilities, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash equivalents to meet lquidity reguirements. In addition, the Group maintains agreed lines
of credit with other banks to maintain the liquidity requirements.

Financing arrangement

The Company had access to the following undrawn horrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period;

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Expiring within one year 40,0001 9,000
Expiring beyond one year {term |oan) - 82,500

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice, Subject to maintenance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan
facilities may be drawn at 2ny time In € and have an average maturity of 1 year {2020 : 1 year).

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, falr vaiues or future cash flows related to financie! Instrument that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices
{such as foraign exchange rates, Interest rates, ather prices). The Company Is exposed to market risk primarily related to currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
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Foreign Currency Risk
The Company kas instgnificant ameunt of forelgn currancy ¢anominated assets and liabilities. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the rlsk that the value of the financial instrument wifl fluctuate a3 a result of changes in market prices and related market variables whether caused by factors specific to
an individual investment, its issuer and market.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company has invested In the mutual fund zfter considering the risk and return profife of the mutual funds i.e. the dabt profile
of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks and other institutionat partias and equity investment is made after considering the performance of
the stock.

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments in unlisted equity securities, debt securities, units of mutual funds, which are classified as financia! assets at Fair
Value through Profit and Loss and amounts to as follows:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Exposure to price risk 30,750 38,512
Sensitivity analysis
The table below sets aut the effect on profit or lass due to reasonable possible weakening / strangthening in prices of 5% :
As at Asat
Effect on profit or loss { lakhs) 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X lakhs} X laichs}
Irpact on profit before tax for 5% increase in prices (384} (481)
{Impact on profit before tax for 5% decrease in prices 384 481

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the vulnerability of the Company's financial condition to adverse movements in market interest rates. It corresponds to the potential effects of Interest rate
changes on the Company's profitability, iy particufar net interest income. Exposure to this risk primarily results from timing spread in the re-pricing of both on and off-balance
sheet assets and liabilities as they mature {fixsd rate instruments) or contractual re-pricing (floating rate instruments). The objective of interest rate risk policy is to establish
boundarles on interest rate risk exposure for the Company and the governance and monitoring palicies for interest rate risk management.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changas at the =nd of the reporting perlod are as follows:

As at As at
Particular 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {Xlakhs)

Fhied rate borrowings

Deht Securities™ 99,900 83,400

Borrowings 7,500 -
Variable rate borrowings 278,350 280,730
Total borrowings 386,750 364,130

* Includes Subordinated Habilities

The following metrics are employed for measurament of interest rate risks:

- Repricing Gap analysis — measured by calculating gaps over different time intervals as zt a given date, and measures mismatches between rate sensitive liabilities and rate
sensltive assets (including off-balance sheet positions).

- Sensitivity analysis — interest rate sensitivity is monitored as per interest rate simulations, viz. potential loss due to an adverse movement in interest rates of 100 bps for
mismatch up to 1 year.

Sensitivity analysis

Asat As at
Effect an profit or loss (X lakhs} : ' 31'March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs} {X lakhs)
{mpact on profit before tax of 100 bps increase in intarast rate {2,794) {2,807}
[impact on profit before tax of 100 bps decrease in interest rate 2,794 2,807
Flnancial Instrument
a. Classificatfon and Fair Values of Financial Assets & Liahilities
The faliowlng table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financlal assets and financial liabilities as at reporting date :
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Particular (% lakhs) (X lakhs)

FVTPL Amartised FTRL Amortised Cost

Cost

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent - 6,770 - 11,890
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalent - 59,566 - 250
Trade Recelvables - 68 - a5
Loans and advances to customers - 368,674 - 382,843
Investments 30,75¢ - 38,512 -
Other financial sssets - 904 - 1,076
Total financial assets 30,750 435,982 38,512 403,084
Finanvial lizbllities;
Trade payahles - 297 - 198
Debt securities - 100,186 - 89,401
Subordinated liabilities - 7,218 - -
Borrowing other than debt securities - 286,263 - 280,342
Other financial liahilities - 14,607 - 6,706
Total financial lighilities 0 408,571 - 376,647

Falr Value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, loans and advances to custome ,-other: ancial assets, trade

payables and other financial liabilitles approximate their carrying ameounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.
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b. Fair value hierarchy

As per Ind AS 107, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the fair values of the financial assets of financial liakilities are defined as the price that would be received on sale of asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market partlcipants at the measurement date.

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuatlon technigues that are used to measure fair value that are either observabie or unobservable, The hierarchy gives the highest
pricrity to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

This section explains the judgemeants and estimates made in determining the fair vaiues of the financial instruments that are (a} recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed i the financlal staterents. Ta provide an indicatlon about the reflability of the inputs used In determining fair
value, the company has dlassified its finangial instruments Inte the three levels prescribed under the Ind AS 107. An explanation of each leve! follows underneath the table.

The hierarchy used is as follows :
Level 1 - Inputs are quated prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities.
Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs are not basad on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values sre determinad in whole or in part using a valuation modet Lased en assumptions that
are neither supported by prices from observable current market trangactions In the same instrument nov are they based on available market data,

a) Financial assets meastred at FVTPL at each reporting date

Particular Level 1 Level 2
As at Asat As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2020 ! 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs} {% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Investment 14,818 - 15,832 38,512
Yotal 14,818 - 15,932 38,512

b) Financial assets and liabilitles measured at amortized cost at each reporting date

As at 31 March 2021 {X lakhs]

Particular careying Val Fair Value

Arrying Value fevel 2 level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers * 389,533 - 288,533
Other financial assets 904 - 914
Total 390,437 - 390,447
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Deht securities 100,186 - 100,005
Subordinated liabilities 7,218 - 7,385
Barrowing other than debt securlties 286,263 - 286,263
Lease liahilities 1,831 - 1,913
Tatal 395,498 - 395,556

As gt 31 March 2020 { fakhs)

Particulay Carrying Value Fair Value

level 2 evel 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers * 400,098 - 400,098
Cther financial assets 1,076 - 1,075
Totak 401,174 - 401,173
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debt securitias £9,401 - 89,345
Borrowing other than debt securities 380,342 - 280,342
Lease llabilities 2,171 - 2,210
Total 371,914 - 371,897

*Grass value of portfolio loans

Fair value of financials assets and financis! liabilities at amortized cost {i.e., Loans and advances to customers, Other financial assets, Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt
securities ) is calculated on pool basis at present values of future cash flows over expected tenure of financial Instruments.

Following discounting factor are used for caleulation of falr values:

Particulars Discounting factors
Loahs and advancas to customers These are floating advances hence fair vaiue equals to amortised cost

Other financial assets, Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt seécurities  [Average cost of funds as at reporting date

Valuation technigques used to determine fair value

The falr value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normaily the transaction price {fair value of the conslderation given or received). Subsequent to Initial racegnition,
the Company determines the fair value of financlal instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted bid prices (financial assats heid) or quoted ask prices (financial
liahilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method, market comparable method, recent transactions
happened In the company and other valuation models.

The Company meazures financlal instruments, such as investments {other than equity investments in Subsidiaries), derivative financial instruments, etc. at falr value.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the clrcumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

Each class of financial assets Technigues

Government securities The fair value is determined by applying direct quotes available from the active market for such
securitias.

Units of mutual funds Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the mutual fund at which units are issued or redeemed

Certificata of Deposits The fair value for such securities is determined by applying benchmark yield available In the public
demain,

Equity shares Discounted cash flow basad on tha present value of the expected future aconomic benefit and fair
value as determined by the managerent based on MIS review, audited finangial statements and
information available tn public domain ,4"'4':'”“1;:'5';;;“}33“_\

)
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In arder to assess Laval 3 valuations as per Company's investment policy, the management reviews the performance of the investee companies on a regular basis by tracking their
latest available financia| statements / financial information, valuation report of independent valuers, recent transaction results etc. which are considered in valuation process.

The finance department of the Company includes the team that performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair value. Discussions on valuation processes and resuits are held batween the valuation team and the senfor management at least once every six months which is in line with the
Company’s haif yearly reporting periods.

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liahilities
As at 31 March 2021 {X lakhs) As at 31 March 2020 (% lakhs)
tParticulars Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
months months mgonths months
Finareial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,770 - 5,770 11,880 - 11,850
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 59,566 - 58,566 250 - 250
Investments 30,750 - 30,750 38,512 - 38,512
Trade receivables 63 - 63 25 - 25
Other financial assets 804 100 904 956 120 1,076
Loans and advances 35,793 328,882 368,674 8,586 381,257 385,843
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets {net} - 621 621 - 374 374
Deferred tax asset {net) - 5,638 5,638 - 2,937 2,937
Other non financial assets 306 268 575 667 152 813
Property, plant and equipment - 456 456 - 820 820
Right of use assets - 1,646 1,646 - 2,020 2,020
|ntangible assets - 197 197 - 172 172
Intangible assets under development 0 - o - 28 28
Total Assets 138,057 337,808 475,865 60,885 387,880 448,766
Financial labilities
Trade payables 297 - 297 198 - 198
Debt Securities 25,206 74,880 100,186 39,433 49,968 89,401
Subordinated |labllities 282 5,936 7,218 - - -
Borrowings ©8,116 218,147 286,263 €4,883 215,459 280,342
Other financial liakilities 12,642 1,865 14,607 4,544 2,162 6,706
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net} - - - 148 - 148
Pravislons 285 - 285 o] 175 175
Cther nen financial Habilities 872 503 1.475 240 457 707
Equity - -
Equity share capital - 30,803 30,803 - 30,803 30,803
Other equity - 34,731 34,731 - 50,286 40,286
Total liabilities 107,800 368,065 475,865 109,446 339,320 448,766

*With reference to pare Covenant Breach of Notes 17, the company have classified its facilities as per their contractual maturity given none of lenders have chasen to recall any
facilities as at reporting date.

Estimation uncertainty due to COVID 19

The COVID-19 pandemic widespread affected across the globe. The pandemic followed by restricted lockdown Imposed by the government caused disruption to businesses and
economic activities. In assessing the impact of COVID 19 an carrying value of assets and fiahilities the Company has considered judgement and assumptions Including extent and
duration of pandemic, impact of government stimulus, customers and industries responses up to the date of these financial results. The Company's Impairment loss allowance
estimates are inherantly uncertain and, as a result, actual results may differ from these estimates. The Company has factored its risk assessmant majarly through its expected eredit
loss mode! (ECL), It has recorded a total additional ECL overlay of INR 8,072 lakhs as on March 31, 2021 (31 March 2020: INR 757 |akhs) in this regard.

Tha Company has been duly servicing its debt obligations, maintains a heaithy capital adequacy ratio and has adequate capital and financial resources to run its business and meet
its committed obligations far the foreseeable future. Further, there have been no significant changes in the control and processes followed In the preparation of the financial
resulis, Since the situation is rapidly evolving and that the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company's financial performance is dependent on future
developmeants, which are highly uncertain, effect on the operations of the Company may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results, The
Company will continue to closely manitor any material changes to future economic condition from time to time,

The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year's classification, where applicable.
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i}

iii}

iv)

ADDITIONAL BDISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY NHB

Disclosures as required in Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021 (RBI/2020-21/73
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.138/2020-21) dated February 17, 2021. These have been prepared on the basis of INDAS financials In line with Master Dirsctian,

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio {‘CRAR’)

Particular As at As at

31 March 2021 131 March 2020
CRAR (%) 24.32% 23.00%
CRAR - Tier | 21.26% 22.17%
CRAR -Tler il 3.06% 0.83%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-t capital {2 lakhs) 7,000 -
Amount ralsed by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments (% lakhs) - -

Reserve Fund u/fs 2% C of NHB Act, 1987

The Company has created a reserve fund as required by section 29C of Natiehal Housfng Bank Act, 1987, wherein 2 sum equal ta twenty percent of Its profit every year, as disclosed in the
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared, is transferred. The Speclal Reserve qualifies for deduction as specified u/s 36 (1} {viii} of the Income Tax Act, 1861 and
accordingly, the Company has been avafling tax heneflts for such transfers,

As at As at
Particular 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
{% lakhs) {% lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year
Statutory Reserve u/fs 25C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
Amount of Special Reserve ufs 36(1){viii} of ncome Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1087 508l 331

Addition / Apprapriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:

Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
Amount of Spacial Reserve u/s 36(1}{viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purpases of Statutery Reserve ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 . 278

Less:
Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36{1){vil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken Intc account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year
Statutory Resetve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36{1)(viit) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutary Reserve u/s 29C of the MH8 Act, 1987 500 509

Details of invest ts with in provision for depreciatian

As at As at
Partlcular 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
{X lakhs) {% lakhs})

Value of Investments
Grass Value of Investments
In India 30,750 38,512

Outside india - -

Provisions for Impairment
Inindia - -
Qutside India - -

Net Value of Investments
inindia 30,750 38,512
Quiside India . .

Movement of provisions held towards depraciation on investmants
Opaning kalance - -
Add : Provisions made during the year - _
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -

Closing balance . -

Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, exchange traded interest rate derivatives. Hence, no disclosure is made for the same.
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Securitization

a) The Company has not entered into any agreement for securitisation. Hence, no disclosure is made for the same.

h) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisatlon / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
During the year Company has not seld financlals asset to securitisation/ reconstruction company for asset reconstruction.

) Assighment

Detalls of Assignment transactions Undertaken by the Company during the year

Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
{X lakhs} (X lakhs}
Mo, of accounts 325 2,640
Aggregate value {net of ptovisions) of accounts 5,276 34,348
Aggregate consideration 5,276 34,348
Additional consideration realised in respect of - -
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value™ 498 3,214
* Recognised as Unfront gain on Direct Assignment
d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
(i) Details of non performing financial assets purchased during the year:
Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
[ lakhs) {% lakhs)
Mo. of accounts purchased during the year
Aggregate outstanding NIL NIL
Of these, numher of accounts restructured
|Aggregate outstanding
{it} Detalis of noh performing financial assets sold* :
Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(% lakhs) (X lakhs)
No. of accounts sold during the year 77 a5
Aggregate outstanding 2,904 2,885
|Aggregate consideration received 1,181 1,534
*Includes sale of written off portfolio
Asset Liability Managemient Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities:»
Particulars As at 31 March 2021 {2 lalkhs] As at 31 March 2020 (X lakhs)
Advances* investiients Banlf Mark?t Advances Investments Bank Market
Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings
Up ta 30/31 days 5,542 - 3,415 12,949 332 - 863 -
Over 1 moenth upto 2 Months 1,747 - 2,560 1,408 328 9,619 2,292 7,478
Over 2 months upto 3months 2,043 1,458 €,155 207 769 12,151 4,915 -
Over 3 months & up to 6 menths 8,395 15,687 18,322 10,420 2,308 9,528 15,477 10,826
Over 6 Months & up to 1 year 22,082 5,504 30,499 7,670 4,839 7,214 41,434 21,182
Over 1 year & up to 3 years 68,914 - 162,439 60,300 22,587 - 142,650 28,639
Over 3 years & up to 5 years 43,400 - 54,901 14,600 29,504 - 71671 18,500
Over 5 years & up to 7 years 41,078 - 813 - 36,853 - 1,041 2,376
Over 7 years & up to 10 years 60,267 - - §,511 63,324 - - -
Ouet 10 yaars 315,222 - - - 228,589 - - -
Total 368,674 30,750 279,103 114,564 389,843 38,512 280,343 89,401
A The Company does not have any deposit and Foreign currency lizbilities hence the disclosure is not applicable
*Advance as at 31 March 2021 are disclosed as per behavicrai pattern.
Expasures
a) Exposure to real estate sector
As at As at
Particular 31 March 2021 { 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (% lakhs)
Direct exposure
Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages on residentiz) property that is or will be occupied by the barrower or that is rented 350,078 359,316
Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on commercial teal estates {office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, 35,457 40,783
muith-farily residential buildings, multi-tenanted cormercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotals, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc.). Exposure would zlso include non-fund based Imits
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised exposures -
a) Residentlal - -
b) Commercial Real Estate - -
Indirect Exposure - Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank {NHB] and Housing Finance Companies {HFCs) - -
Total Exposure to Reaf Estate Sector 388,533 400,099

Above amount includes principal autstanding, Interest accrusd thereon and other adjustments for gross carrying value, The Company provides loans against property which are fully
collateralized against a residentlal property, commercial property. All Residential collateral are reported under residential mortgage while comrnercizls (Including commercial reai estate,
shops, hotels and Industry) collateral are reported as commercial real estate, The end use of the loan may be business in case of a business customer or could be personal in case of a

salaried and Individual customer.




b} Exposure to capital market
The Company has na exposure te the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previeus year.

¢) Details of financing of parent company praducts
The Company doas net finance any of it’s hotding/parent company products.

d) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL} / Group Borrower Limit {GBL} exceeded by the NBFC

The Company has not lent / invested / lent and invested in any barrower / group of borrower in excess of limits prescribed by the NHB.

e} Unsecured advances

Refer note note number 7 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against the rights, licenses, authorizatlons, etc.

vill) Registration with other financial sector

[¥ame of Regulator [Status | Registration Details

Ilnsurance Regufatary and Development Authority [corporate Agent [¢A0492 valid till April 30, 2020

ix) During the year NHB had imposed & penalty of % 11,800 for contraventian of paragraph 22 and 27A of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Direction 2010,
x} Refer note 36 for related party transactions during the current and previous year.

xi} Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

For the year ended 31 March
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2021 2020
CARE CRISIL CARE CRISIL
Non convertible debentures/ Sub deht AAA Stable AAA Stable AAA Stabie AAA Stable
Terrn Loan AAA Stable AMA Stable AA Stable | AAA Stable
Short term debt / Comercial Paper Al+ AL+ Al+ AL+

Ratings are subject to annual surveillance.
xii) Net Profit or Loss for the period, pries period items and changes In accounting palicies,

The Company has not debited any prior period ftems in statemant of profit & loss during the current year/previous year. Refer Note 1.C for significant accounting policies
xiiij Revenue recognition.

There has been no instance of revenue recognition being postponed pending resolution of significant uncertainties.

xiv} Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Year ended Year ended

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
(X lakhs] {Z lakhs}

Pravision towards NPA partfolio loans 3908 4,404

Provision made towards Incoma tax (incl. adj. for tax of earliet petiod) 843 2,186

Provisions for depreciation on Investment - -
Other Provision and Contingencies - -
Provision for Standard Assets {with details fike teaser lcan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.} -
-Housing 3,542 581
-Non Housing {inel, CRE) 3,155 681

The total provision carried by the Company in terms of paragraph 15 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Finanelal Company — Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, as

follows:-
Break up of Loan B: Advances and Pravisions thereon As at 3'1 March 2021 8 Iakljsl As at 31 March 2020 [< fakhs}
Housing Non Housing Housing Non Housing

Standard Assets .

a) Total Outstarding Amount 208,868 159,019 215,948 168,816

b Provisions made 5919 4,089 2,377 835
Sub-Standard Assets

a} Tota! Outstanding Ameount 5,798 10,176 8,187 5,484

b} Provisions made 3,530 5,022 3,748 2,352
Doubtful Assets ~ Category- - .

a) Total Outstanding Amount 3,068 1,575 1,310 54

b} Provisicns made 1,537 747 653 151
Doubtful Assets - Category-Hl . .

a) Tetal Qutstanding Amount 29 - - -

b) Provisions made 14 - - -
Doubtful Assets - Category-lil - .

a) Total Outstanding Amount . - . .

b) Provisions made - - - .
loss Assets - .

a) Totat OQutstanding Amount - - - -

b) Provisions made - - - -
TOTAL

a} Total Qutstanding Amount 218,763 170,770 225,445 174,654

b} Provisions made 11,001 9,859 6,818 3437




xv)

xvi)

Rvii)

Draw down from reserves

The Company has not withdrawn 2ny amount from any of the reserves during the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil)

Concentration of Depasits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

{2} Coneentration of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the current and previous year. Also there are no outstanding deposlt from earller years.

{b} Concentration of Advarices

Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X lzkhs) {% lakhs)
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 12,809 14,173
Parcantage of advances to twenty largest borrowears to total advances of the Company 3.28% 3.54%
{c) Concentration of Exposures {fncluding off-balance sheet exposure)
Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(X 1akhs) {% lakhs)
Total exposure ta twenty largest barrowers / customers (Amount includes carrying value of loans and undrawn loan commitment) 14,257 17,177
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the Company on horrowsrs / customers 3.52% 4.34%
[¢)) Concentration of Non Performing Accounts
Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 Mavch 2021 | 21 March 2020
{% lakhs} (% lakhs)
Total Exposure to tap ten NPA accounts 3,213 3,534
{e) Sector-wise Non performing accounts
Year ended Year ended
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
(% lakhs} (X Iakhs)
Housing Loans
Individuals 4.57% 4.30%
Buider/Project loans 0.00% 0.00%
Corporates 0.00% 0.00%
Others 0.00% 0.00%
Non Housing Loans
| ndividuals 7117 3.42%
Buider/Project loans 0.00% 0.00%
Caorporates 0.00% 0.00%
Others 0.00% 0.00%
Movement of NPA’s, provision, net npa {op, add,reductions,closing)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020
T lakhs) (% lakhs)
Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 2.85% 2.13%
Movement in Gross NPAs
{a) Opening Balance 15,334 5,501
(k) additians during the year 25,055 17,585
{c) Reductions during the Year 18,742 8,762
d]} Closlhg Balance 21,647 15,334
Movement in previsions for NPAs
(a) Opening Balance 6,944 2,540
(a) Provisions made during the year 10,301 6173
{b) Write off / Write back of excess provisians 6,393 1,769
d) Closing Balance 10,852 6,944
Movement in Net NPAs
{a) Opening Balance 8,390 3,961
{k) additians during the year 14,754 11,423
{£) Reductions during the Year 12,349 5,954
{d} Closing Balance 10,795 8,390




wviii) In texms of requirement of NHB's Clircular No. NHB (ND) /DRS/ Pal_Circular. 61/2013-14 dated 07 Aprll, 2014 following information on Reserve Fund under section 29C of the National

i)

xx}

xxa)

HRi)

*xii)

wuiid)

lij

Housing Bank Act, 1987 is provided :

(refer note no. 55 (i)}

The Company has net Invested in any overseas assets in the current and previous year. Also there are ne outstanding investments from earlier years.

The Company has not sponsored any off-Balance Sheet SPV in the current and previous years which were required to be consclidated as per accounting narms. Also there are no
outstanding investments from earlier yaars,

The Company does not have any subsidlary, associate or [nint verture company, hence the disclosure is not applicable. Furthar tha consslidated financial statements is not apslicable to the

company

Asset classification based on circular no. RBIf2019-20/170 dated 13 March 2020

Year ended 31 March 2021{Takhs)

Difference
Gross Carrying Lass Allowances Provisions between ind AS
" Asset classlficati isi
Asset Classificatlon as per RBI Norms sset classlfication as per ind AS Amount as per Ind {Provisions} as Net Carrying required as per | 109 provisians
109 AS required under Amount IRACP norms and IRACP
Ind AS 109
norms
2 3 4 5={3}-(4) 6 7={4})-{6}
Parforming Assets
Standard Stage 1 330,298 1,529 328,769 1,211 318
Stage 2 37,224 8,266 28,958 1,050 7215
Stage 3 365 149 225 1 138
t i 367,887 9,935 357,952 2,263 7,672
Non-Performing Assets (NPA}
Substandard Stage 3 16,875 8,553 8,422 2,551 £,002
Doubtful
upto 1year Stage 3 4,643 2,285 2,359 1,290 534
1103 years Stage 3 29 14 15 11 3
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal for douhtful 4,672 2,299 2,373 1,301 098
Loss Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal of NPA 21,647 10,852 10,795 3,852 7,000
Qther items such as guarantees, loan commitments, ete. which are in Stage 1 21,109 20 21,089 - 20
the sr:ulpAe of Ind A3 109 I?ut nat :ov.er:ed. under current Income Stage 2 437 5 431 N &
Recognition, Asset Classification 2nd Provisioning (IRACP} norms
Stage 3 2838 46 243 - 46
Subtotal 21,835 72 21,7683 - 72
Stage 1 351,408 1,548 349,858 L2111 338
otal Stage 2 37,661 8,272 29,389 1,050 7,222
Stage 3 22,300 11,028 11,262 3,854 7,184
Total 411,368 20,859 390,510 6,115 14,744

1. Total Gross carrying amount represents loans at amortised cost as per Note 7. Cther items in column 3 include undrawn loan commitmeants,

2. ECL provisioning 's presentad at the pertfollo level for each stage while the Provisions required as per IRACP norms are presented in accordance with RBI/NHE guidelines and cireular

reference dated 17 April 2020.
3. Interest on NPA portfolic is nat recognized under IRAC norms, while interest on Stage 3 assats Is accountad as nat of ECL provisian and forms part of carrylng value of portfolio loans.

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Circular QQR,No.BF.BC.53/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 17 April 2020 pertaining to Assat Classification and Provisioning in terms of COVID19
Regulatery Package
Asat As at
Particular 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
{% lakhs) (% lakhs)

Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categaries, where the moratorium/deferment was extended* 25,925 20,866
Raspective amount where asset classification benefits is extended 25,574 2,142
General provision made** : . -
Generaf provision adjusted during the period agalnst slippages and the residual provisions - -

* Amount as of 29 February 2020
**The Company, being MRFC, has complied with Ind-AS and guidefines duly approved by the Board for recognitlon of the impairments.

During the year, to relieve COVID-19 pandemic retated stress, the Company has invoked resolution plans for eligible horrowers based on the parameters laid down in accordance with
the resolution poticy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI on & August 2020.

Disclosure as per farmat prescribed under notification no. RBI/2020-21/16 DOR_No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 for the year ended 31 March 2021

A {6} ict D) {E)
Number of exposure to Of (8), aggregate Additional increase in

accounts where accounts amount of debt funding provisicrs on

Particular | plan has | r d at {A) thak was sanctioned, f | account of the
been implemented before canverted into any, ingluding | impfementation

under this windew | implementation | other securitles between of the
of the plan invocation of the | resolution plan
plan and

Personal Loans 200 7,354 - - 2,708
Corporate Persons - - - - -
of which MSMEs »25 Cts . R . . R
others - - - - -
Tatal 200 7,354 - - 2,708

Bisclosura as par format prescribed under notification no. RBY2020-21/17 DOR.Na.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 {for restructuring of accounts of Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector —
Restructuring of Advances having exposure less than or egual to Rs. 25 crores} for the year ended 21 March 2021

(a) {B) €y )] {E)
Number of exposure to Of (B), aggregate Additional Increase in -
accounts where accounts amount of debt funding provisions on

resalution plan has | mentioned at {A) that was sanctioned, if | actount of the

Particular heen implemented hefore converted [nto : any, including |implementation
under this window | implementation | other securities between of the
of the plan invocation of the | resolution plan
plan and
implementation
MSME_of which exposures <25 Crs 90 3,415 - - 1,203
Total 90 3,415 - - 1,203




wxiv] Details of Principal Business Criteria as per Pavagraph 4.1.7:

Particular As at
31 March 2021
{2 lakhs])
Housing Finance Assets of its total assets netted off by intangible assets 45.10%
Indivigual Housing Finance assets of its total assets netted off by intangible assets 44.40%
wxv) Disclosure on complaints
Asat Asat
Particular 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020
{X lakhs} {%X lakths)
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 4 7
No. of complaints received during the year 145 115
No. of compiaints redressed during the year 142 118
Mo. of complaints pending at the end of the year 7 4
xxvi} The details of frauds noticed / reported are as below:
Year ended Year ended
Particular 31 March 2621 |31 March 2020
(% lakhs) {% lakhs)
Amount Invalved 120 420
Amaunt Recovered a [
Amount written off/provided 119 414
Balance h -
wuvil) The Company does not have any outstanding loan against gold jewelleries as st 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020; 2 Nil).
uxwili] Remuneration Lo directors - Refer Note 36.1 of Notes to Accounts of financial statements
The Company has reclassifiedfregrouped previous year figures to confarm to current year's classification, where applicable.
ForBS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY

(a5 required n terms of paragraph 13 of Non-banking financials (Daposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms { Reserve Bank of India) Direction 2007}

5.No iParticuIars

[ As at 31 March 2021 (% lakhs)

Liabilities side:

i Loans and advances availed by the Non-Banking Financial €

y inclusive of interest accrued therean but not paid:

Amount
OCutstanding

Amount Overdue

{a} Debentures {other than fatfing within the meaning of public depasits)
Secured {ihcluding Extarnal Commarcial Bands)
Unsecurect

(b} Deferred Credits

() Term Loans (including Externat Commercial Borrowings)

{d} Inter-corporate loahs and horrawing

(&) Commerctal Paper

(f} Public Deposits

(g} Other Loans

100,186
7,218

279,062

7,160

41

2 Break-up of {1){f) above {Dutstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

Amount
Outstanding

Amount Overdue

{a} In the form of Unsecured debentures

{b} In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfzll in the value of security
(c) Other public ceposits

Assets side:

3 Brealk-up of Loans and Advances including blls receivables [other than those inchuded in {4) below] :

Amount
Outstanding

{a) Gross Sacurad
(b) Gross Unsecured

389,533

4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

Amopunt
Cutstanding

{1} Lease assets incduding lease rentals under sundry debtors :
{a) Finance Lease
{) Operating Lease

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtaors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b} Repossessed Assets

{ili) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities :
{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b} Loans ather than [a) above

5 Break-up of Investments :

Amount
Outstanding |

Curvent investments
1. Quoted:
{t) Shares:
(a) Equity
(b} Preference
(i) Debenturas and Bonds
(i} Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Gthers
2, Unquoted:
{i} Shares:
(a} Equity
{b} Preference
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i} Units of mutual funds
(iv} Government Securities
(v} Others - Certificate of Deposits
- Commercial papers

Long Term Investments
1. Quoted:
{i) Shares:
{a) Equity
(b) Preference
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
(v) Others
2. Unquated:
{i} Shares:
{a) Equity
{b) Preference
(i} Debenturas and Bonds
{iii} Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v).Others

[ Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances :

Category

Amount net of Provision

Secured

Unsecured

" Trotal

1. Related Parties
(@) Subsidiaries
{b} Compantes in the same group
{c) Other related parties

389,533 o]

389,533

2, Qther than related parties
Total

389,533 Q9

389,533

-



7 Investor group-wise elassification of all Investments {current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unguoted):

Market Value / Book Value {Net of]|
Category Break up or falr Provisions)
value or NAV
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - -
{b) Campanies in the same management - -
{c) Other reiated partias - -
2. Other than related parties 30,750 30,751
Total 30,750 30,751
8 Other Information Amount
Outstanding |

{i) Gross Non-Performing Assats
{a) Related parties -
{b) Other than related parties 21,647

{Ily Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties -
(b} Other than related parties 10,795

{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
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